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Corporate Information 2 7] & %}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman)

Mr. ZHANG Yijun (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
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InberPENDENT NloN-ExecuTive DIRECTORS
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Mr. ZENG Yunshu
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus
(FCPA, FCCA, ACIS, HKICS, MBA)

AUDITOR
KPMG

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hutchins Drive
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George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Level 8, Hong Long Building
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Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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Corporate Information 2 & &l

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG T SR

Suite 4906 B

49/F, Central Plaza BT

18 Harbour Road BB 185

Wanchai RIREIS 4918

Hong Kong 4906 &

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER B2 S R P &G E

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

The Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

IN Hong Kone:
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

In THE PRC:

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Bank of Communications
Agricultural Bank of China

Hua Xia Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.hlkg.net

e-mail: ir@hlkg.net
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Corporate Development Milestone A T % R E 2

First move: Incorporation of Hong Long Properties Group Limited, formerly known as Hong Long Properties
—  (Shenzhen) Company Limited, the Group' s major operating subsidiary

B ARETELENBARABELERBERAR (FIEBEBE ORI BRAR) EMKL

First property development project: Commenced the construction of Harbor City in Shenzhen

BEMERFIRL  RAYBEELHSHT

First move into property leasing business

BREREMEEEET

First move beyond Shenzhen into Huizhou

BRBEHARYI - EFEEMN

S— Acquired interest in Yinghua project

W RE S EETH B Rk RS

Grand opening of Hong Long Plaza
shopping mall
TEIE 5 KRR

2 <
D s g g s g S

First move into international capital market: Listing on HK Stock Exchange and raised funds of HK$472M
BREEBBREARTS - ERBH T LI E15 472,000,000 8 THE €

Acquired interest in Yifeng Plaza (now renamed as Hong Long Century Plaza)

WiEE L Ei5 (RERET £ ES) ks

Acquired 50% interest in Nam Fong Garden, Guangzhou, and subsequently disposed

W B N F 75 TE B 50 % #E 2 N RS B 14 &

Commenced construction of Grace Garden

B TEERRTEE —
First fund raising exercise after listing in HK: Issuance of Senior Note of US$90M

BELTEAEREEED : BTBERIEIE1590,000,000 X THE S

First move beyond Guangdong into Zhangjiakou, Hebei

BRBHER - #EETILRR O

Commenced construction of Ningjiang Uptown in Xingning

EEEH T HRE TN

4 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
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Corporate Development Milestone A T % R EE

Establishment of subsidiary in Dongguan for a
potential project

—— RELEAERZRL —RAEBARA
Acquired interest in Zirui Garden

Wi R Im L B ROt 2

Acquisition of further lands for Ningjiang Uptown in Xingning
R B — P+ 3

Completed the open tender offer for purchase of Senior Note
Entered into agreement for issue of shares to CCBI

RIAZRERETRO LR

Entered into strategic cooperative agreement with China Construction Bank for the comprehensive banking facilities of
RMB10 billion

B BERRITI BB TS FRE - GERERER/ARB100ET

Entered into acquisition agreement for project at Pinghu Street, Longgang of Shenzhen

ARy TR TR AEREE f KB S

Entered into cooperative framework agreement with the Management Committee of Shenyang Economic and
Technological Development Zone of Liaoning Province, PRC for the construction project of Shenyang Tiexi Industrial
New City

REG BT ERPGERE R BPRREREGLCERMAEREZ S LA FERDGZ

Declaration of special dividend of HK$0.15 per share with scrip dividend for the 3rd anniversary of listing in Hong Kong

REVARREE LT =BF - ERER0.16BTHFRE - LM RARKEE

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A T 5
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Business Scope A T ¥i5 218

JE [E 12 %
HONG LONG
Holdings

Corporate and business structure

EEREBRE

his families )
EERARK 92.53%

Total leasable area
#a vt B EH & 112,810m°

Shenzhen/

1 Dongguan
2.54%" R R
660,929m°
6.5%" |
Total GFA of land reserve 848,590m?>
T i EEEEEER
3,398,144m>

Meizhou/
Xingning

M,

and individual /
investors 38.43%"

HAgER
BAREE

PJ’operty development 803,506m>

LE L

88,693m?

Tiexi District,

Notes Pff#F : Shenyang
1. Shareholding as at 16 April 2010. LR EAE

7201044 A 16 BEIARIELL A ©

2. Acquisition agreement for the project was entered into on January 2010.
20105 1 AR i RARIEE ©

3. Framework agreement for the project was entered into on January 2010.
M 20104 1 ARRTERBARIAR ©

4. Projects under negotiation.
ERAIAR -

996,426m”

6 Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GFR A A
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Business Scope A Bl ¥i548 18

25,850m>?

13,185m> 58,513m> 15,262m°

Old City
C:.l:tug Lglr;gza Zirui Garden ﬁa Project Pinghu Project Renovation Doo?gogtt;zn
)‘lﬁl'éﬁryﬁa)i*% REEERE HHEIFH EHEE on Guangchang Project
North Street REEEEE
E 3 Bld- 2 ¢ TR
110,121m? 153,589m? 57,950m> 149,630m? 69,759m>* 119,880m>*
146,837m* 386,720m” 315,033m”
/ ngjiang Uptown| @g Uptown S
Grace Garden Ph 1 Ph 2 auhinia Garden
-] ¥?b ase ase
- ETHIBE1H SETHEE 28
10,455m° 76,336m> 631,715m”
88,693m”
4sidential Residential Residential Residential Adenﬁal
project project project project project
on parcel no.1 on parcel no.2 on parcel no.3 on parcel no.4 on parcel no.5
15 IRF=IER SRR EEER IR EEIER 45T EEE SRR EIER
112,185m*® 186,309m*® 194,022m*® 196,123m*® 307,787m*®
Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A A 7
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Group Financial Summary £ B & i§ 8 E

RESULTS E 31

For the year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BILFE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT

Turnover ] 362,369 119,628 411,677 521,040 148,541
Net increase in fair value of BREMENRAAE

investment properties Epepilipes-c] 56,830 62,120 180,352 566,343 7,250
Profit from operations 1 g A 172,541 122,290 486,196 927,783 79,471
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $T4 SR T AR

financial instruments NRERE

HEE (19,994) 58,533 (28,182) 432 =

Finance costs A& AR (87,843) (90,227) (55,091) (23,170) (361)
Profit before taxation FR A5 AT g A 64,704 90,596 402,923 905,045 79,110
Income tax FriSit (33,497) (87,236)  (152,421)  (206,779) (14,814)
Profit for the year REEmF 31,207 3,360 250,502 698,266 64,296
Profit attributable to equity AR B AR R

shareholders of the Company =yl 32,699 3,546 250,685 698,969 63,531
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS G~ AR EIR AR

At 31 December
M12A318H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTT

Non-current assets EREEE 1,436,304 1,368,908 1,282,002 1,010,645 231,540
Current assets MENE E 3,120,386 2,455,402 2,250,053 738,829 594,312
Current liabilities mEAE (1,210,385) (1,255,575)  (822,079)  (818,239)  (576,893)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,625,468)  (908,932) (1,070,250)  (86,812)  (101,861)
Minority interests DHAE RS (2,732) (13,082) (12,268) (23,091) (24,694)
Equity attributable to equity AR SRR
shareholders of the Company e 1,718,105 1,646,721 1,627,458 821,332 122,404
8 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE12 R AR A F
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Chairman’s Statement *F %

The board of directors (“Board”) of Hong Long Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Hong Long” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESULT

The turnover and gross profit for the year were RMB 362.3 million and
RMB 87.5 million respectively, representing a substantial increase of
202.9% and 90.5% compared to the previous year. Profit attributable to
shareholders surged 822.1% compared to that of the previous year to
approximately RMB 32.7 million. Basic earnings per share was RMB 3.14
cents, representing an increase of 823.5% compared to the previous year.

DIVIDENDS

As the Group has reached its 10th anniversary of establishment and
the 3rd anniversary of listing, the Board decided on 5 February 2010 to
pay a special dividend of HK$0.15 per share as a token of thanks to the
continuous support and trust given by the shareholders. Shareholders may
elect to receive shares in lieu of cash at HK$1.29 per share. Relevant cash
and scrip dividends have been distributed to the shareholders on 31 March
2010. The Group will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance
with the development needs in the future.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since 2009, under the stimulus of various factors including the economic
stimulus program introduced by the central government, the adjustment
in the real estate market ended earlier than expected and was heated up
again, fuelled by higher and increase in transaction volume. The Group
achieved encouraging results by implementing effective marketing
strategy at the right timing in accordance with the market changes.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT SEGMENT

This segment mainly comprises the development and sales of middle to
high range residential and commercial properties.

BEERARAR(TARANDESG(ES
) MARHBEARRRENB AR (HEL 5B
BElsk [ARER])EE2009F 12 A31 BILFE
BARE 4 -

ES

BEBREFSABAREI2IEETHIAR
87 5BEIT REFESHRIAKFBIENMN202.9%
5.90.5% o A% 3 FEAh i B B _EFE KR LT
822 1% EHBARE3.7EET - FREALR
FABARKE3 14D B EFEEINS23.5% °

JBe 8

MEASER I THEFR ETM=ZAF  AEH
RER—BARNEZFNEE  EFER20105F
2AAREEREINRESRONGET - &
RNALE LA 29 TN EURRKR S - BHEER
S RBERSCH 201043 A31 HORG S
R AEBEBAEBRRNERFTEMHITAE
HIRBBE ©

SE5 Il B

2009 FF LAZR + 72 b S AT HE ) 80 4578 RIBUBCR
ELBAZMFAT - BHEMISRENERS
BMAR - HIRTIREFERE AR 218
mEEL - HHEMIFRFEE - AEBRILER
LA A & S SR BEERIS T Al B AUBKAE -

Y2 A AR B

SRR E B 2P SIEREEMENFEENHEE

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A T
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Chairman’s Statement *E %

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT SEGMENT (ConT’D) W) 2% BB AR (48)
Properties developed and under development and partially sold in 2009: 20094 - BREREREMELEPITH
BHRHEE -
Realised Approximate
Name of Project Area Sold Revenue  Average Unit Price
HA £ BERHEEERRE BRKA HFHEEF
(m?) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(FFHK) (AREFT) (AR¥EFT)
Zhangjiakou Xiang Jiang City RROBILIEM 27,841 99,778 3.58
Huizhou Urban Upstream Landscape BRI ILEE1H]

Villa Phase 1 14,431 83,276 5.77
Meizhou Grace Garden HREEE 22,911 54,595 2.38
Xingning Ningjiang Uptown Phase 1 £ 58 BT FT 56 1 A 19,080 51,711 2.71

84,263 289,360 3.43
Progress of other major projects still under development: EMMERENEZHEH#ER -

Situated in the financial district of Lo Wu, Shenzhen, the Hong Long MNRFINEBeRENRERELES  HESE

Century Plaza is a prime complex of high-end offices, residential units BEHAE  FERBEZEEIEE - 7£2009
and hotel. The main structure was basically completed in 2009. Pre-sale FEATKEZMLEE - WER 201063 A 31
permit was obtained on 31 March 2010 and the current sales progress is ARSTEEFFAIE - BRIHSEBRIERS -

satisfactory.

Located in Shenzhen near Buji county, Zirui Garden is a high-end R RINSE LA S RIBIERE S E N EE
commercial and residential project. Ancillary facilities of the project and B o £ 2009 4F & 4% 52 A AR B A ic 2 SUE RN 78 14
documentation processing were completed in 2009. Construction is KPR - TERT2010FHE)T -

expected to begin in 2010.

PROPERTY LEASING SEGMENT EL N =YE
This segment mainly comprises the operation of commercial real estate, IR E B SHEMEFG HAEANEE  E
such as the leasing of prime commercial projects and provision of property EHEEEMNHENSEMXEER -

management services.

10 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
Annual Report 2009 —ZZ N FEF R



Chairman’s Statement *F %

PROPERTY LEASING SEGMENT (ConT’D)

Timing of the launch of “Quality Management Year” campaign by
Shenzhen Hong Long Commercial Management Company Limited (“Hong
Long Commercial”), a subsidiary of the Group, in 2009 was perfect,
the Harbor City (Gangrun Plaza), Baorun Ornament Materials Mall and
Hong Long Plaza (Gang Long City Shopping Mall) managed by Hong
Long Commercial have all succeeded in enhancing brand recognition,
management effectiveness and operating efficiency. Moreover, Hong
Long Commercial was awarded “Gold Coordinate ® 60th Anniversary of
New China eGolden Operator of China Commercial Real Estate”( [ &4
1Z e BI60IEF o b Bl 5 St = S HIE A | ) in 2009. Mr. Zeng Sheng,
the co-president of the Company, was also awarded the honorary title of
“Golden Coordinate ® 60th Anniversary of New China e Excellent Promoter
of China Commercial Real Estate” ( [ AA1Ze3 e BIG0IEFerh BT ¥ ity
ESHHEEHAY] ). In addition, Gang Long City Shopping Mall, located in
Hong Long Plaza, was awarded the “Golden Coordinate ® 60th Anniversary
of New China @ the Project Award of the Top 30 Shopping Centers with the
Most Growth Potential in Guangdong Province” ( [ £ A2 {Z e EI60/HF
BREEYPLI0REAKRMEERAE] ).

LAND RESERVE

In 2009, the Group has devoted in integration of internal resources for
sustainable development in the future. The Group has already undertaken
two projects at the beginning of 2010. One of the projects is located
at China South City, in Pinghu Street of Longgang District, Shenzhen.
Upon completion of the acquisition, the high-end residential area of
the Group will be increased by approximately150,000 square meters
("“m?"”), and the commercial properties managed by the Group will be
increased by approximately 26,000m?. The acquisition of the project will
further enhance the influence of the “Hong Long” brand in Shenzhen.
The second project is in Shenyang, the transaction was signed at the
business promotion fair held by the Liaoning delegation in Hong Kong.
We have entered into a cooperative framework agreement in relation
to the construction project of Shenyang Tiexi Industrial New City with
The Management Committee of Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone of Liaoning Province, PRC. The project involves
a construction area of approximately 1 million m? with middle to high
range commercial and residential properties, hotel and convention
center. In addition, the Group will jointly establish Tiexi Industrial New
City Investment Company with other parties to take up various property
investments and developments.

As of 31 December 2009, the total gross floor area ("GFA") of the
land reserve of the Group was approximately 2.25 million m?2. Upon
implementation of the above two new projects, the total GFA of the land
reserve of the Group would be increased to approximately 3.40 million m?.

YR B AR (%)

FEBNMBARRYTRERXEEERA
Al ([ MBI % ) 2009 FER Bt 7 [ IR
=EEY  ETEZNBERMLOEERME
BE%) - BREHMTEIRAEREES CEERE
PR L) S RSN - BRSNS W
V=B - TRIEE K IRIE 2009 FFARE[ £ IT o
60 EF « FEIMEBEDRELHE]
KRR E G EETRRT [ LT o 5
FREIGOJAEF o FH Bl i HE M S A HEE) A W) I 88
ML o SO IRBIEES AN B ERED T
DERE[ LT o FTE60EF o« EREEYT
30 EFAMKREIRE ] -

ok A

KREBER2009FEHEBAANMBER  B5%K
B E R RMUTER - 2010718 - AEEE
RAETTMERRE - —RURFINTERMRF
HMEEERWNIAR - TRKER - AEEE
ENFSEEENIEF I AREERENE
W268FHK - BSHARBE—FIES 5
2| mig RSN E N - —2EGEE
AEETEEERREREEETHBEH
HMEFEEEEEGEERNHAREEZS
FRICEGETERMPERER S FERY
#) o WA EZEEN 1008 F ke
SEREDE BERERPL - B KE
EHEFEEENERNMREARETER
MEREMFE -

B 1F2009F 12 A31H @ AEE L HHEENERE
FZERE(EEEEDNA2BFH K BEE
P MEFRIZER R AEE T MFEENER
FEEAIEELN B340 BFHK -

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A T
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Chairman’s Statement E[Eif %

LAND RESERVE (ConT’D)

Currently, the Group is actively involved in the renovation projects in
various cities including Shenzhen (such as the Old City renovation project
at Guangchang North Street). At the same time, the Group has been
actively seeking for more business opportunities through acquisitions of
equity interest or public land auctions and other means in the cities within
and outside of Guangdong Province.

PROSPECT

In respect to the real estate development trend, despite the inevitable
consolidation the Chinese real estate market is facing in the short
run, various factors including the macro-economic growth, increase of
disposable income, abundant liquidity and the changes of consumption
structure will help the real estate investment of China to continue its
growth in 2010, and it is unlikely for a significant decline in real estate
prices.

To create the environment for sustainable development in the future,
and with the aim for establishing a solid foundation for building a long-
established brand for Hong Long, we will continue adhering to the
corporate culture of “Behaving ourselves honestly, Handling with matters
sincerely and Loving the society cordially” and the management concept
of striving for “Outstanding product, Superior potency, and High-quality
service”. We will implement a series of strategies and measures as
follows:

. Highlighting our core competitiveness with clear positioning:
Devoted in unique product development and aimed to become
the developer and operator of residential + commercial and urban
integrated projects.

. Comprehensive implementation of the “531" project, that is,
implementing the five-year development plan of the Group;
formulating fully the three year rolling development plan of
residence marketing of the Group; and fully establishing and forming
the overall work process and management system with more
scientization, more standardization and more perfection.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
Annual Report 2009 —ZZ H FF IR
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Chairman’s Statement *F %

PROSPECT (CoNT’D)

. Enhancement of six main capacities:

(1

(€)

()

Strengthening and expanding the real estate business, and
increasing our capacity in developing and operating urban
integrated projects

As real estate is the core business of Hong Long, we must
maintain a more positive spirit in business growth and further
increase our land reserve as soon as possible, so as to speed
up development and hence capital return. Besides paying
more efforts in taking up projects of urban renewal and
renovation of old cities, at the same time we will develop
more commercial real estate projects featuring the style of
Hong Long, creating a more mature business model.

Enhancement of corporate governance and strengthening of
investor relations

We will further strengthen the Company’s regulatory
standards and increase the transparency of our management.
At the same time, we will formulate program and strategy
on investor relations and keep in contact and maintain close
communication with institutional investors, analysts and
shareholders, and establish good credit standing in Hong
Kong and international financial markets.

Building of a professional team for better execution of the
management role

We will strengthen the building up of the professional
manager team, the planning of operation and management,
the overall team work and co-operativeness so as to
effectively enhance practical skills, and to strengthen the
accountability management to the business objectives.
Assessment of the accountability to business objectives of
subsidiaries will be conducted, while performance appraisal
programs for various departments and individual employees
will be carried out gradually.

Increasing reputation of the “Hong Long"” brand and
enhancing the brand influences in the market

The brand of an enterprise symbolizes its competitiveness.
We decide to reinforce our service motivation and improve
the management standard.

AR (4])

. BRI SKEED

(M

(3)

(4)

MR MAETE - RIWMTHE
BHMZELL

BENTEEREFMES - HM
BB RIF R IEBERA SR - &
TRIE 0L M REA - DOERBAEE - AOR
B BT E R ME RN
HEOWAXE - RESHEREREZH
BImE|FenmEmERE - 4l
EERARAHNBEELER -

REARER  MERREEBR

%196 3 — 25 03k 2 79 ) BEK
¥ REARNEENENE - AN
i 6B IR A BR T T B
AN - BEERRBREE 5
T BRI AR S B R AEE -
EESREBERMBRIEAN
PR -

HEWEREEN  RAGEER
BRI 1T )

FAIH DRI S AT A B R 2R
IERAC S EIE TVERTEIME - N8 T
ERBEBUEMERAE  ERE
ERTI{ERE) - MREEBIREE
HIEIE - HITEAREBETEE
BREERZZ - HEBEALIM
BTEARZESHEREREZT

=

]

i [ eiE ] mbg o 12T [RE ] &

EAInE-2 - P

miEREEBEFIOEFE - HAE
B RRTS BB B IR -
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Chairman’s Statement *E %

PROSPECT (CoNT’D)

(5) Maintaining transparency in operation in compliance with law,
and enhancing the capacity of regulatory control

Maintaining transparency in operation demonstrates the
business ethics of being responsible to shareholders and
investors. The monitoring and control over the business
process are implemented and executed appropriately by
means of establishing a sound regulatory system. Such
system will be implemented comprehensively in each of
the project companies within the Group, so as to control
the workflow monitoring-oriented management platform,
promoting the business development in an effective and
orderly manner, and enhancing the management and
control standard of the entire multi-project and multi-location
operation of the Group.

(6) Performing with due diligence and conducting harmonious
cooperation, strengthening the establishing of corporate
culture, enhancing the cohesiveness of the Group,
friendliness of leadership and loyalty of employees.

Despite the complicated situation in the real estate industry of
China, we remain confident in 2010. Upon the 3rd anniversary
of listing and the 10th anniversary of establishment, we
will continue to create greater value for the Company and
shareholders by taking practical actions.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and contribute
to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have actively
participated in various charity activities involving cultural education,
disaster relief, environmental protection, health and hygiene, as well as
public transportation of the municipal. The Group will continue to promote
our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity and love to the community
internally, and bear our related social responsibility.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

After a decade of stable development, Hong Long still relies on the trust
and support of the shareholders, business partners and all the staff in
facing the challenges ahead. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express
the sincere thanks to all parties concerned.

ZENG Yunshu
Chairman
16 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1.

Turnover increased by 202.9% to approximately RMB362.3 million.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company increased
by 822.1% to approximately RMB32.7 million.

Basic earnings per share increased by 823.5% to RMB3.14 cents.

Shareholders’ funds were up 4.3% to approximately RMB1,718.1
million. Net assets per share is RMB1.65.

At 31 December 2009, net gearing was 85.9% with outstanding
bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB1,769.6 million
and cash at bank and in hand of approximately RMB290.5 million
(including pledged deposits).

The Group completed the open tender offer for the repurchase of
Senior Note, substantial part of Senior Note had been repurchased
and obtained consent to waive certain key restrictive covenants.

As at 31 December 2009, we have land reserve of planned GFA of
approximately 2.3 million m?. Our land reserve can be increased to
planned GFA of approximately 3.4 million m? after considering the
newly signed projects and framework agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 1Bl R
Change
2009 2008 =100
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFIT AREFTT ARETE
Turnover = 1
Property development bIES kS 289,360 64,147 225,213
Property leasing YIRS 73,009 55,481 17,528
362,369 119,628 242,741
Gross profit ! 1 87,466 45,912 41,554
Other net income Hbiz 55 2 64,964 37,097 27,867
Other revenue EAbYA 3 31,071 55,491 (24,420)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 4 (21,775) (5,226) (16,549)
General and administration expenses ~ — M NITHRE 5
- share option expenses -RIREEA - (342) 342
- others - Efth (35,304) (31,931) (3.373)
Other operating expenses HihEEEHA 6
- share option expenses - RREEA - (15,375) 15,375
- others - Hit (10,711) (25,456) 14,745
Net increase in fair value of TEYEN D R ERIEINFE
investment properties 7 56,830 62,120 (5,290)
Net change in fair value of derivative MTHESRIAENARER
financial instruments BENFE 8 (19,994) 58,533 (78,527)
Finance costs A& R AR 9
- Senior Note - BEER (86,460) (89,813) 3,353
—others - Hit (1,383) (414) (969)
Income tax FSH 10
- corporate income tax - EMREH (16,085) (16,059) (26)
- land appreciation tax - THbIBETR (6,683) 661 (7,344)
—due to changes in tax rate on opening - %t R & Bh ¥ B IR I 7 18
deferred tax balances ERMEE - (66,081) 66,081
- deferred tax - BT IE (10,729) (5,757) (4,972)
Minority interests DB R 1,492 186 1,306
Profit attributable to equity NN B o AR R FE A s )
shareholders of the Company 32,699 3,546 29,153
16 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

1.

Turnover and gross profit: Turnover comprises of sales proceeds
of properties delivered and property leasing income. There was
substantial increase in revenue, since in 2009 we delivered
approximately 79,2562m? of residential units, 4,5636m? of shops and
475m? of carparking spaces in four projects, while in 2008 we only
delivered approximately 21,731m? of residential units and 223m? of
shops in Xiang Jiang City.

Other net income: The increase in 2009 was mainly due to the gain
on repurchases of the Senior Note.

Other revenue: The decrease in 2009 was mainly due to the
decrease in interest income and compensation income on
cancellation of swap agreement related to the Senior Note in 2008
where there is no such item in 2009.

Selling and distribution expenses: The increase in 2009 was
mainly due to more advertisement and promotion events incurred
for sales of four projects, while in 2008, we have sold certain units
in Xiang Jiang City only.

General and administrative expenses: The decrease in share
option expenses, a non-cash item, was due to no option granted
during 2009. The increase in other general expenses was mainly due
to the increase of manpower required to handle various properties
under development.

Other operating expenses: The decrease in share option
expenses, a non-cash item, was due to no option granted during
2009. The remaining decrease in 2009 was mainly due to provision
of impairment on loans and receivables in 2008 where there is no
such item in 2009.

Net increase in fair value of investment properties: The
net increase in fair value is mainly due to the prevailing market
conditions.

Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In
September 2007, the Company issued Senior Note with warrants.
The change in fair value, as assessed by independent valuer has
been recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. It is a non-cash item.

Finance costs: The decrease in 2009 was due to the repurchases
of the Senior Note. The relevant finance cost thus decreased.

Income tax: The increase in land appreciation tax in 2009 was
mainly due to more sales of properties and thus the corresponding
profits. For the year ended 31 December 2008, as a result of change
in tax rate in 2008, there is further provision on opening deferred tax
balance resulting in the significant increase in tax for 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

While principally engaged in the development of middle to high range
residential and commercial properties in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"), the Group expects stronger recurrent cash flow
from commercial properties leasing in the future. In 2009, property
development income and property leasing income accounted for
approximately 79.9% and 20.1% respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

Cash at bank and in hand and pledged deposits as at 31 December 2009
amounted to approximately RMB290.5 million (31 December 2008:
RMB103.9 million) which including RMB229.5 million, US$8.1 million, and
HK$6.7 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,769.6 million as at
31 December 2009 (31 December 2008: RMB1,209.8 million), RMB375.8
million was repayable within one year, RMB1,052.2 million was repayable
after one year but within five years and RMB341.6 million was repayable
more than five years. The Group’s borrowings carried interest at fixed or
floating interest rates. The Group's total bank and other borrowings divided
by total assets as at 31 December 2009 was 38.8% (31 December 2008:
31.6%).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB3,120.4 million (31 December 2008: RMB2,455.4 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,210.4 million (31 December 2008:
RMB1,255.6 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB1,515.0 million were secured by certain bank deposits, investment
properties and properties for future development and under development
for sale of the Group of approximately RMBO0.9 million, RMB1,264.0 million
and RMB643.8 million respectively. Certain bank and other borrowings are
secured by the Company’s ordinary shares held by the ultimate holding
company.

SENIOR NOTE

For the details of Senior Note, please refer to note 23(b) to the financial
statement.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group's monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. Except for the Senior Note and a US$40 million
credit note facilities, all of the Group's borrowings are denominated in
Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivative activities and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposure
as at 31 December 2009.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save for the guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities (at a
maximum of RMB370 million) granted to purchasers of the Group's
properties, the Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are
directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a staff force of approximately 412
employees. Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration
of employees was in line with the market trend and commensurable to
the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees
includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as pre-IPO
Share Options and Share Option Scheme). Total staff costs incurred for the
year 2009 was approximately RMB25.8 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year 2009
(2008: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development of middle to
high range residential and commercial properties as well as leasing of
commercial properties in the Guangdong and Hebei Provinces, the PRC.

The Group has its business presence in Guangdong, including Shenzhen,
Huizhou, Meizhou and Xingning. Since 2007, the Group has further
expanded beyond Guangdong by acquiring Xiang Jiang City project in
Zhangjiakou of Hebei Province. The expansion signifies the Group's
successful launch of the projects and confidence in second and third
tier cities in the PRC where there is great demand for better living
environment.

For investment properties portfolio, the Group’'s leasable GFA is
approximately 87,000m?, out of which, the Group owned approximately
59,000m? of Hong Long Plaza following its completion in late 2006. Hong
Long Plaza generates recurring cash inflows supplement to the Group's
future investment plan.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are reported in
the following paragraphs.

Hong Long Century Plaza (formerly known as Yifeng Plaza): In April
2007, the Group acquired approximately 70,000m? GFA of Hong Long
Century Plaza in a public auction at a consideration of approximately
RMB482 million. Since then, the Group has acquired further GFA from
other owners for consolidated development. It is a complex of offices,
residential units and hotel of approximately 110,000m? GFA located at the
prime location in Luohu district, Shenzhen. In April 2010, the Group has
launched pre-sales of certain offices and was well received by the market.
It is a great achievement of the Group to step into the development of
offices and hotel.

Urban Upstream Landscape Villa: The total site area and planned GFA is
approximately 500,000m? and 863,000m? respectively. Out of which, the
site area and planned GFA for phase 1 is approximately 121,000m? and
161,000m? respectively. The Group commenced the pre-sales of phase 1
in October 2008. The Group has delivered approximately 14,000m? GFA in
2009.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
Annual Report 2009 —ZZ H FF IR

75 10 g

AEETEAEPRHERERTLLEEETEE
EERBENENHENMBHRYEOHEERS -

REERERNEBREFERI - BN - 15
IR B o 82007 62 - REBFEBIUSLR
AR SRR DM BT R IMIER iR E R RN
Sh o RBEKBEAREEPTELIRR Y
VI ECERMEEEEREEEATHY
TR =T

EREMEMEATE - BEEBEES 2006
FRR T 1& (K F4959,000 F 77 K /&2 5% H P
R AEBAHBESEZ ZEEBERNELD
87,000 F K - MEEGELLEHRER
A BRAKESRIIZETEIRSE °

BRBEEE 2 BRI T XHB -

BREHLES(IBEEES) - K2007F4
B AEBEEBARPEUNNDAREISBE T
BB UK B B PR T 40 B 5 49 70,000 F 5 K R
HiE - AUt REE#E PR EMmEERE
BAWBTETEEDR  FGEA¥EBZH-
BRELESES—EEETE TEEMRE
JEMFAIET - BEMEL110,000F 75K « &
RARYIBHEZ SR - R2010F 48 - A&
EHBEEE THAEMN  MiERERZ - Z
HEAKENETERBEREELTEE —
;L/F °

TERESTIL B EBRREEERES BIL
/500,000 F 75 2K ). 863,000 F /52K - HA &1
Bz BRI s RAR B E A S RI1494121,000
F A K 161,000 F 5K o ZRER K 2008 4F 10
AFRE —HEE - AEER 2009 F B Rt
EEMIEL 14,000 F 5K »



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

In March 2009, the Group disposed of a 18% equity interest in the
subsidiary which holds the project. The Group believes that the disposal
will provide additional funds for other properties under development of the
Group. Taking into account the benefits of the disposal, the Group is of the
view that the terms of the disposal are fair and reasonable and is in the
interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

Grace Garden: In July 2007, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in a PRC company, which holds a piece of land in Meizhou on which
has developed a project named as “Grace Garden”, at consideration of
RMB11 million. It consists of 2 residential blocks and some retail shops
of approximately 33,000m? GFA. The Group commenced the pre-sales in
June 2008. The Group has completed the construction of the project and
delivered approximately 23,000m? GFA in 2009.

Ningjiang Uptown: In October 2007, the Group formed a new wholly-
owned subsidiary in Xingning for development of a landmark project
named as “Ningjiang Uptown"”. The phase 1 is a large scale complex of
9 residential blocks and some retail shops of approximately 95,000m?
GFA. The Group commenced the pre-sales in October 2008. The Group
has delivered approximately 19,000m? GFA in 2009. In addition, the
Group has paid approximately RMB183 million in 2009 for land reserve of
Ningjiang Uptown Phase 2, with approximately 187,000m? site area and
approximately 632,000m? GFA, and the land use right has been obtained.

Xiang Jiang City: In November 2007, the Group completed the
acquisition of a company which holds 100% interest in Xiang Jiang City
project in Zhangjiakou of Hebei Province. It is a residential and commercial
complex of approximately 212,000m? GFA. Xiang Jiang City is a project
under development upon acquisition by the Group. The Group has
delivered approximately 74,000m? and 22,000m? GFA in 2007 and 2008
respectively and generated revenue of approximately RMB171.7 million
and RMB64.1 million respectively. Further, the Group has delivered
approximately 28,000m? in 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 8

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

Zirui Garden: In March 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party for acquiring 100% equity interest in Shenzhen
City Zirui Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Zirui”).
Shenzhen Zirui holds the Zirui Garden project in Buji County, Shenzhen.
Zirui Garden consists of premier villa, residential units and retail shops with
planned GFA of approximately 154,000m?. The Group plans to construct
and deliver by phases in 2011 to 2012.

Pinghu Project: In January 2010, the Group entered into acquisition
agreement for a project at Pinghu Street, Longgang of Shenzhen. It is
a residential and commercial complex of approximately 150,000m? and
26,000m? respectively. It shall be developed in phases from 2010 to 2012.

Shenyang Project: In January 2010, the Group entered into cooperative
framework agreement with the Management Committee of Shenyang
Economic and Technological Development Zone of Liaoning Province
(“Management Committee"”), PRC for the construction project of
Shenyang Tiexi Industrial New City. Subject to further discussion with
Management Committee, the Group will jointly develop (1) Binshui Liwan
Project (B7KEE/&IE H), which will be developed into high-end residential
and commercial integrated community, including golf park, commercial
ancillary facilities, international medical institution, international
educational institution (kindergarten, primary school and middle school)
and landscape belt, of which 75 mu will be used for commercial and public
services facilities and 800 mu for residential developments, with total
investment of approximately RMB4 billion; (2) Core Area Project of the
Management Committee, including international exhibition centre, five-
star hotel, headquarters economy building of which the services building
of Shenyang Economic and Technological Development Zone will be
located, and adjacent residential developments, with total investment of
approximately RMB1 billion; and (3) two parties will jointly establish Tiexi
Industrial New City Investment Company (#F8E 2T E R F), in
which the Group shall hold 40% equity interests.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

Bauhinia Garden: In July 2004, the Group acquired a land of site area
of approximately 29,000m? near the train station of Xingning for the
development of Bauhinia Garden with planned GFA of approximately
85,000m?. The Group plans to commence the development in 2010.

Yinghua Project: In March 2005, the Group acquired a 85.71% equity
interest in Shenzhen Yinghua Development Company Limited (“Yinghua")
which holds a land of site area of approximately 9,000m? with planned GFA
of approximately 58,000m?. In November 2009, the Group completed the
acquisition of remaining 14.29% equity interest in Yinghua and now wholly
owned the project. The Group plans to commence the development in late
2010.

Old City Renovation on Guangchang North Street: In 2007, the Group
obtained approval from Luohu district government, Shenzhen, for an old
city renovation on Guangchang North Street ([ Ei54b8 ] EHkE). Itis
located at the south of Hongbao Road (AL E ), the west of Heping Road
(F1F#%) and Dongmen Old Street (RFIE1H), the north of Shennan Road
East (#E 58 ) and Shun Hing Plaza (ZYI11Z #E 51 F A E) and the east
of Baoan Road South (EZ ). It is located in the central commercial
district of Luohu district of Shenzhen. The first phase of the project
will occupy site area and planned GFA of approximately 11,000m? and
70,000m? respectively. The Group is arranging the pre-preparation works.

Dongguan Qiaotou Project: In March 2008, the Group established a 90%
owned subsidiary in Dongguan. The Group is considering a residential and
commercial complex of approximately 120,000m? GFA. The Group plans to
develop the project by phases in late 2010.
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DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. Zeng Yunshu, aged 57, is the chairman, an executive director,
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company and the
president of Hong Long Property Group Company Limited (“Hong
Long Property”). Mr. Zeng is founder of Hong Long Property, the major
operating subsidiary of the Group. He is responsible for determining the
overall business strategies, making investment decisions and determining
the overall business management direction of the Group. Prior to the
establishment of the Group, Mr. Zeng worked in the Xingning City and
Meizhou municipal governments from 1981 to 1990. Mr. Zeng worked in
Shenzhen Petrochemical Industry (Group) Co. Ltd. from 1991. Mr. Zeng
was awarded the title of “Outstanding Contributor” for the development
of Xingning's economy, and the father of Mr. Zeng Sheng, an executive
director of the Company. Mr. Zeng has more than 17 years experience in
the development and management of properties from 1963 Currently, He
is also a standing committee member of the People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Meizhou, Guangdong Provice, and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He is a director of Grand Prosperity Limited
("Grand Prosperity”), a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Zeng has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
3 years, commencing from 22 February 2007, but subject to retirement
by rotation and, being eligible, re-election,thereafter, Mr. Zeng retired by
rotation and was re-elected in 2009 annual general meeting pursuant to
the Company’s articles of association. The Company has entered into
another service contract with Mr. Zeng for a term of 3 years since the end
of the 2009 annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation,
being eligible, for re-election in accordance with the Company's articles of
association.
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DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

Mr. Zhang Yijun, aged 55, joined the Company in December 2009 as
the vice chairman, chief executive officer and an executive director and
the chief executive officer and a director in Hong Long Property. Mr.
Zhang graduated from South China Normal University in China. Mr. Zhang
is now a senior economist and holds a degree of EMBA from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He studied corporate management and real estate
management in Japan with 20-year work experiences in investment and
corporate management. He was previously, the commissioner of Bureau
of Supervision of the Shenzhen Municipal Government, the chairman
and the president of Shenzhen Construction and Investment Holdings
Company Limited and an executive director and chief executive officer of
Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stock Code: 0604). Mr. Zhang resigned
as an executive director and the chief executive officer of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (stock code: 0604) on 1 December 2009 and a non-
executive director of Coastal Greenland Limited (stock code: 1124) on 7
December 2009 and Road King Infrastructure Limited (stock code: 1098)
on 11 December 2009, all of which are companies listed in Hong Kong.
Mr. Zhang has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of 3 years, coming from 22 December 2009. According to the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Zhang holds office until the forthcoming
general meeting and, being eligible, for re-election in the same general
meeting.

Mr. Zhang Yiyan, aged 59, joined the Company in October 2008 as the
vice-chairman, co-president, an executive director and the chairman of
board of supervisors of Hong Long Property. Mr. Zhang is a postgraduate
of economic studies, a senior accountant, and qualified as a certified public
accountant of the PRC in 1994. Mr. Zhang worked in various enterprises
and government departments in Xingning City, Guangdong Province from
1979 to 1989; and vice director of the general inspection office for taxation
and finance of Shenzhen, assistant to chief and office director of Shenzhen
Finance Bureau, director of general affair division and director of account
division of Shenzhen Finance Bureau since 1989. Beginning from 2001,
Mr. Zhang has acted as the Party secretary, member of Party committee
and section head of disciplinary section of the Bureau, overseeing duties
such as the supervision and review of finance matters. Mr. Zhang has
over 40 years experience in administration corporate management and
financial and accounting management. Mr. Zhang has entered into a
service contract with the Company which provides for a period of 3 years,
commencing from 6 October 2008, Mr. Zhang holds office until 2009
general meeting, and he retired and was re-elected in 2009 annual general
meeting pursuant to the Company's articles of association. Thereafter,
the Company has entered into another service contract with Mr. Zhang
for a term of 3 year since the end of the 2009 annual general meeting
but subject to retirement by rotation, being eligible, for re-election in
accordance with the Company's articles of association.
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Mr. Zeng Sheng, aged 30, is vice chairman, co-president and an executive
director of the Company and vice president in Hong Long Property. He
is responsible for the overall planning and investment project of the
Company's businesses and the decision for its commercial management
company. Mr. Zeng graduated from Shenzhen University in 2001. In
October 2003, Mr. Zeng completed the EMBA course in Ling Nan
College of Zhongshan University. Mr. Zeng joined the Company in 2001,
and has extensive experience in property investment and commercial
management. Currently, He is also the vice director of China Federation
of Urban Commercial Outlets Construction Administration, a council
member of Shenzhen Chamber of International Commerce, and the vice
president of Shenzhen Retail Business Association. He was also awarded
the honorary title of “Golden Coordinate ® 60th Anniversary of New China
e Excellent Promoter of China Commercial Real Estate” ([ 4442 o #7eh
HE0EEF o REIEEMESBIEE AY]) - Mr. Zeng is a director of Grand
Prosperity Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and the
son of Mr. Zeng Yunshu, an executive director of the Company.. Mr. Zeng
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 3
years, commencing from 22 February 2007 , but subject to retirement by
rotation and being eligible, re-election in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, thereafter, Mr. Zeng retired by rotation and was re-
elected in 2009 annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s articles
of association. Furthermore, the Company has entered into another
service contract with Mr. Zeng for a term of 3 year since the end of the
2009 annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and,
being eligible, re-election in accordance with the Company's articles of
association.

Ms. Ye Qingdong, aged 43, is vice president and an executive director
of the Company and vice president in Hong Long Property. She joined
the Company in 2001. She is responsible for overseeing the Group's
properties development and operation. Ms. Ye graduated from Xinjiang
Engineering Institute (¥738 TZ5%) in 1988 with a degree in engineering
majoring in industrial and civil architecture. Ms. Ye also completed the
Executive MBA Program of Shanghai University of Finance and Economic
in 2007. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ye had worked in 158 B AR 4744
F25BT (Xinjiang Textile Design College) and AigttzE (£E) D ERA
7] (COFCO Property (Group) Joint Stock Company Limited), Ms. Ye has
over 13 years of experience in architecture and structural design, project
assessment as well as development. Ms. Ye was named 20034 ;%450
EMERARLIEAN" (The best 50 Senior Manager of Shenzhen Property
for Year 2003) in 2003. Ms. Ye has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, commencing from 22 February 2007,
but subject to retirement by rotation and being eligible, re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association, thereafter, Ms. Ye
retired and was re-elected in 2008 annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company's articles of association. Furthermore, the Company has entered
into another service contract with Ms. Ye for a term of 3 year since the end
of the 2008 annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A T
Annual Report 2009 —ZZ N EF R

EH ()

BRLEE 305 ARBEEREERF - BE
BEHMBITES  BREMEINER L4t E
BERAIEBHEERLEREEMBETHE
EENAHREK - BHAER 2001 FEERFI
KE22003F 108 » TP ILKEEREERIT
BRI ERELTRE - ZA4ER 2001 FMAK
DR EVERERBEETESIABRTE
CHIKEER o BRI MINEEPBIR T EAT
BERBASREM  RYBEEEIERSE - T
TEREHSRE  2009FHRT [ S EZ o 5
FEGOREF-FHAEEMESBESHAY] B
5% o WILA RN R AL E Grand Prosperity
Limited 7EE - RGO EARGRNITEEEE
WREZRF - BHREEAQNRG L AH=F
RRFGA4) - B2007F2 A22 HAEW » 1%
HEEARBARREBERRBERT  2EKE
BIBT o AR 2009FRRBEAS LEGRE
BAT > WEBRET - HiE  ARAESLE
MR2000 FMERAFASEREESBEAH=F
ZREER - EBEEREAQRABERA
IR RETE ERBIRET -

EBERZLT 435 ARFRBERAITE
= BREMERIBE - FR2000FMAEXR
Al BREEASENEHEREMGE - &
ZEMN 1988 FRENFIB LA  ISTER
TARBEN TIRETEL - HIR 2007 F4
R ABEZERESMAETITHEEBTEN -
EMAREB 2R B+ EEBRIEEAE
BA SRR RPELE(E®E) BRHERA
Al EEEREESR  FRIHLHEEE
A A 13FREE - ELLHR2003FEE A
[2003 FRINAHEHESRLEIBA] - Eit
HANRRI I AHZFHREEL - B2007F
282284 - EELTBRBEARNRARMEHTE
RERT > WA BKRBEIRIET - £ +5 2008
FREEAFTRG FRFERMT WEBEET-
Hiz  ARaHELZTR 2008 FRERFAS
HRREBREARE=-FZIREER - HAERE
EREAS FRERITABIRBIRET -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EER SR EEAE 2 BE

DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

Mr. Ouyang Junxin, aged 40, is an executive director of the Company,
and the controller of the financial management centre of Honglong
Property. Mr. Ouyang joined the Group in 2000 and is responsible for the
corporate finance and overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Ouyang
graduated from EPMNTEIARHE RZEZ 20T (the Business and Trade
School of Huanghe Science and Technology University in Zhengzhou City)
in 1993 specialising in industrial economic management. He has more than
16 years experience in finance and accounting management. Mr. Ouyang
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years,
commencing from 22 February 2007, but subject to retirement by rotation
and being eligible, re-election in accordance with the Company's articles
of association, thereafter, Mr. Ouyang retired and was re-elected in 2008
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s articles of association.
Furthermore, the Company has entered into another service contract
with Mr. Ouyang for a term of 3 year since the end of the 2008 annual
general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible,
re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Jun, aged 48, joined the Company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee, respectively. Dr. Li has extensive experience in enterprise
management and investment risk control. Dr. Li is currently a non-
executive director of Global Flex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0471)
and an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Glass Company,
Limited (Stock Code: 0739) respectively, he resigned an executive director
of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (Stock Code:
1228) on February 2009, all of the companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has entered into a service contract with the
Company until the forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to
retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 41, joined the Company in January 2007 as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee,
a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of
Accounting Degree from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia
and a Master of Science (Investment Management) Degree in Finance
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is an
independent non-executive director of China Environmental Resources
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Group Limited (formerly known as Benefun International Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 1130), a Hong Kong listed company, since 4 July 2008. He
was an independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0136), a Hong Kong listed company, during the period from 9
March 2005 to 7 April 2008. Mr. Cheung currently works as the Corporate
Development Director for Profound Heavy Industrial Limited. Mr. Cheung
served at Deloitte Touche from 1991 to 1994, and he was the vice
president and executive vice president of Daiwa Securities and Japan Asia
Securities from 1994 to 2002 and 2002 to 2005 respectively. Mr. Cheung
also worked as the Corporate Finance Director of Grant Thornton from
2005 to 2008. Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the accounting area
and capital market. Mr. Cheung has entered into a service contract with
the Company until the forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to
retirement by rotation and, eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Mr. Wang Fosong, aged 77, joined the Company in October 2008 as
an independent non-executive director, member of the audit committee
and the chairman of the nomination committee. He is an academician of
the Chinese Academy of Sciences and academician of the Third World
Academy of Sciences. He acted as director of Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences, vice director of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences, member of Presidium of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences Academic Divisions, chairman of Chemistry Division,
vice chairman of China Petroleum Society, vice chairman of Chinese
Material Research Society. He is currently the chief of the High Polymer
Science Committee of China Chemical Society, vice chairman of China
Association of Senior Scientists and Technicians and vice chairman of
China International Culture Exchange Centre. Mr. Wang was a member of
the 7th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of
the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress Standing Committee and the
National People’s Congress Foreign Affairs Committee. He was awarded
with the National Scientific and Technological Progress Special Prize,
National Natural Science Award, International Award of the Society of
High Polymer Science, Japan and Science and Technology Advancement
Award of Ho Leung Ho Lee Foundation. Mr. Wang has entered into a
service contract with the Company until the forthcoming annual general
meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Company's articles of association.
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Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 53, joined the Company in March 2010 as an
independent non-executive director and members of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. He graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and holds a master's degree
in Business Administration from The University of East Asia, Macau,
currently known as the University of Macau. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has more than 32 years
of experience in financial management. Mr. Li is currently an executive
director and the financial controller of GDH Limited and also the financial
controller of Guangdong Holdings Limited (&R Z&ER AR Q). He is
an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(stock code: 0604), Hans Energy Company Limited (stock code: 0554) and
China South City Holdings Limited (stock codes: 1668). Mr. Li is a non-
executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code: 0270)
appointed by GDI on 30 May 2000. Mr. Li is a director of Shenzhen City
Airport (Group) Company Limited (F3JIT#5 ((£E) AR AF). He is
a member on the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited.
He is also the vice chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs
Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association
(BEEPBRECERSUEHEELEE). Previously, Mr. Li had worked in the
subsidiaries of Henderson Land Development Company Limited (stock
code: 0012). He was a member of the Election Committee for 2007
HKSAR Chief Executive Election. Mr. Li has entered into a service contract
with the Company for one year. According to the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Li holds office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 45, is the Company secretary of the
Company. He joined the Company in 2006 and is responsible for corporate
finance, financial reporting and compliance and company secretarial
matters of the Company. Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also an associate
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Chu has over 20
years experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and taxation.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (ConT’D)

Ms. Wei Haiyan, aged 34, is the Group's deputy chief executive and the
vice president of Hong Long Property. Ms. Wei joined the Company in
2000, is mainly responsible for the administration and personnel affairs
of the Group. She graduated from the International Finance Department
of Shenzhen University in 1993, majoring in International Finance, and
thereafter, she completed all courses in Finance, Trade and Economy
Department of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and all courses
in the master students of digital management programme at the CIMS
Engineering Technology Research Centre, Tsinghua University. Currently,
Ms. Wei is a committee member of the People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Meizhou, Guangdong Province. She has over 12 years
experience in management area.

Ms. Zhong Lili, aged 49, and is currently deputy chief executive of the
Group and deputy general manager of Hong Long Property. She joined the
Group at the end of 2001, is responsible for the overall legal affairs of the
Group. Ms. Zhong graduated from the Southwest University of Political
Science and Law (FAFBUEA A EE) and obtained a Bachelor Degree in Law in
1984. Ms. Zhong worked at the Policy Research Office of the Department
of Justice of Sichuan Province (P0)1|%& BABEB I ZE) and she was
appointed as a lecturer of the Law School at the Southwest China Institute
for Nationalities (FEEIER&E%) in 1991. Ms. Zhong worked as a legal
adviser to a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 1998 and was
appointed as a legal consultant in a state-owned enterprise in 1999. Ms.
Zhong has extensive knowledge in PRC legal affairs and approximately 22
years in law practice.

Mr. Xie Xinhao, aged 55, and is deputy chief executive of the Company
and financial controller of Hong Long Property. He joined the Group in
2003, is responsible for the financial affairs of the Group. Mr. Xie had
worked in a state-owned enterprise and a property developing company.
Mr. Xie has many years of experience in finance and accounting practice
and in real estate development and management in the PRC.

Mr. Tsui Kin Yee, aged 55, is currently deputy chief executive of the
Company and vice president of Hong Long Property. Mr. Tsui joined the
Group in 2007, and is responsible for the investment and planning affairs
in the real estate development projects of the Group. Mr. Xu positioned
in a Hong Kong listed company engaging in real estate development from
1995 to 2003, and was responsible for the acquisition, development and
management work. Mr. Xu has over 12 years experience in real estate
development and management.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) are pleased to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the public listing of the Company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 22 February 2007 (the “Listing Date”).

Details of the group reorganisation are fully explained in the paragraph
headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in Appendix VIl to the prospectus of
the Company dated 8 February 2007 (the “Prospectus”).

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 59.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
Nil).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, as the Group has reached its
10th anniversary of establishment and the 3rd anniversary of listing, the
Board decided on 5 February 2010 to pay a special dividend of HK$0.15
per share as a token of thanks to the continuous support and trust given
by the shareholders. Shareholders may elect to receive shares in lieu
of cash at HK$1.29 per share. Relevant cash and scrip dividends have
been distributed to the shareholders on 31 March 2010. The Group will
formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the development
needs in the future.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, of approximately RMB32,699,000 (2008: approximately
RMB3,546,000) have been transferred to reserves. Details of the
movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 63
and note 30(a) to the financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB62,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted for
3.1% and 7.7 % of the aggregate of the Group's total turnover for the year.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
16.0% and 32.5% of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the said top
five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Yijun

Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

Mr. ZENG Sheng

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Dr. HAN Qinchun

(appointed on 22 December 2009)

(resigned on 19 January 2010)

INnpePENDENT NloN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung (appointed on 16 March 2010)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page 24 to
page 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from their respective dates
of appointment approved by the Board or re-election in general meeting
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association. Each service contract
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than six months’
notice in writing served by either party. Each of the independent non-
executive directors has been appointed to hold the office until the end of
the forthcoming general meeting. In addition, the appointment of each
of Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION
(ConNT’D)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Zhang Yijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung appointed during the year and up
to the date of this report, respectively and Ms. Ye Qingdong, Mr. Quyang
Junxin, Dr. Li Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Wang Fosong will retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 9 to
financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered all independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING HHEPBA - MR SESF R Z
SHARES OR DEBENTURES BE 25

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the Directors in the shares, )‘5@\2009¢1})\331 B %%ﬁf$’%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ}1ﬂ$ﬁ
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated BORE (17 KR IRGIFE XV 32 8%) ([

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Hﬁ%%ﬁ@J)ZH& 7 - AR K& 5 B RIE
Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in BHREEGOIEI2GATFE 2Bk

the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the HRBEEMBITAEBETEF R ZRET

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange BI(THRZESF R D) 0 51T M08 AR B R A2 P 2
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of BT

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

REQAARDZETFR
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interests to
shares total number
held under of shares
Number of shares equity in issue*
RIPEE derivatives %
Personal Family Corporate BRALTE HERTRH
interests interests interests T EEEHE Total BEzADL*
Name of Director E=fA EARER Rikks NRER Ripz8E @t %
Mr. Zeng Yunshu LERLE 2,426,000 - - - 2,426,000 0.23
Mr. Zhang Yijun? REH A - 11,500,000 - - 11,500,000 .11
Dr. Han Qinchun® BRERLD 5,078,000' - - - 5,078,000 0.49
Mr. Zeng Sheng BRLAE 380,000 - 582,320,000 - 582,700,000 56.02
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERZT 102,000' - - 5,000,000° 5,102,000 0.49
Mr. Ouyang Junxin BEHLE 104,000’ - - 2,000,000 2,104,000 0.20
Dr. LiJun FREL - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMAEE - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Notes: B3 -
1. This represents interests held by the relevant Director as beneficial owner. 1. IIEHBESEAESHAAF A ZEL °
2. The shares are held by the spouse of Mr. Zhang Yijun. 2. ERMDBERESSEZERBRES -
3. Dr. Han Qinchun has resigned as Director on 19 January 2010. 3. BEHEFELTN2010F1 A19BBTEERY -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (ConT’D)

4. This represents interests held by Mr. Zeng Sheng through Grand Prosperity
Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), which holds 582,320,000 shares of the
Company. Mr. Zeng Sheng has 80% interest in Grand Prosperity, he is
therefore deemed to be interested in 582,320,000 shares of the Company.
Reference is made to the announcement of the Company issued on 21
December 2009 (the “Announcement”) and unless the context herewith
otherwise requires, terms used in this note shall have the same meanings
as in the Announcement. On December 16, 2009, Grand Prosperity entered
into the First Charge Over Shares in favour of the Security Trustee (acting on
behalf of the Onshore Lender). Under the First Charge Over Shares, Grand
Prosperity has agreed to charge the Grand Prosperity Shares to the Security
Trustee (acting on behalf of the Onshore Lender). The First Charge Over
Shares has been entered into as a continuing security for the Onshore Facility
provided by the Onshore Lender. On December 21, 2009, the Company
entered into the Credit Note with the Third Party, under which the Third Party
has agreed to make available to the Company the Offshore Financing in the
amount of US$40,000,000. The Offshore Financing has a term of two years.
Further, the Company has been advised that on December 21, 2009, Grand
Prosperity entered into the Second Charge Over Shares in favour of the Third
Party, by which Grand Prosperity agreed to charge the Grand Prosperity
Shares to the Third Party as a continuing security for the Offshore Financing.

5. This represents interests in options held by the relevant Director as a
beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by
the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Options or Shares Option Scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option”.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2009 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations which
had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to protect the Group's interest in its current business activities,
each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and Mr. Zeng Yunshu has,
as covenantor, entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) dated 31 January 2007 in favour of the Company, the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
competition, each of the covenantors has undertaken, subject to the terms
therein, to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries)
that it/he would not, and would procure that its/his associates and/or
companies controlled by it/him (other than the Group) would not, either on
its/his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold an interest (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent
or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business
which is or is about to be engaged in any business which competes or is
likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business, those
other businesses of the Group as set out in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong,
the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which the Group markets
or sells its products and/or in which any member of the Group carries on
business mentioned above from time to time. The Company has received
an annual declaration from each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and
Mr. Zeng Yunshu for its/his respective compliance with the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the Pre IPO-Share Options and Share
Option Scheme to the Directors to subscribe for shares of the Company,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share
Option” of this report below.

BT EH TP RO AR

ARERERMB AT EEESHFRHFE - Grand
Prosperity - @B ER B ERTEERIRY
A EER2007F 1 A31 BRI UAR R AR
HANTHEFZY([THEFRLY]) - BAFE
BARBRER Y [HEERRENBEER] — R
BIABFRY  SROAEAAAA (REEAR
FRAEWMBARNFZ) FE - ETHEFELY
BEFARBRT - R TSR ELBE AL
R/SREFEGINA R (BRAEEIN) T g (T
HEAGSBEIRRTMAL  BRKQAE
BEMEERS - PERITAEMAE®EEE
FHEHEMK KA EBTMKE A BT
HIT EMEBOBERYAEERER - EEXHE
BERA ML ESEFES TR ENEBER
FRBRAKSHEESHEEARNEBEBRFDN
TRERTHREET  LQELEIMERFTA
B (REEBRT - TwmelEAlRE - B -
RESEM S KR wmARRET - EHskHE
) o ANA B2 U H) Grand Prosperity ~ B4k
EREERAERERDETIRFRZOTH
AGE T R FE R .

oI M A B A 2 R A

M 2009F 12 A31H - IEREHFLBEKGISE
3521 B1F B 2 & M AT sk sk IR IBIZ <P A 5
TRAADNBRERAME  RARREERD
FEERIRRE R RRETER TIRELAR
AR Z M ARITERRIEEE HRARE T X
[ FRARHE | —&f o

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A T
Annual Report 2009 —&Z N FF IR

37



Directors’ Report EE &4

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND o B RS RER] (4)
DEBENTURES (ConT’D)

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company, its Fr balish - FRAAF - HB AR - HRZR
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any WEBARSKEZERARBEI LERTH -
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the FEFASBEEARNRTRG SEMEAEER
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body 2R mER -
corporate.
SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL B R A A B A Z R
OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2009, the interests of those persons (other than MR2009F 12 A31H * RARRBRGHEARIE
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register B N BB &I ZE 336K AR RIEFE 2 B
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were Fracdk o Em o ZE AL (EERIN AT
as follows:
Percentage
Number of of shares to
underlying total number of
shares held shares in issue
under equity %
derivatives BRMEE AT
Capacity in which Number of ERALTE BR1DEE
Name shares were held shares IESEHERE 2B
g RIEFERD 2515 BRHEE BB 2EE %
Zeng Sheng' Beneficial owner 380,000 - 0.04%
LR EnEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 582,320,000 - 55.98%
SRR
Grand Prosperity! Beneficial owner 582,320,000 - 55.98%
EnEBA
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.? Interest of controlled corporation 60,608,000 9,000,000 6.69%
("LB HLD") SRR AR
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (ConT’D)

Notes:

This represents (i) 582,320,000 shares held by Grand Prosperity which is
owned as to 80% by Mr. Zeng Sheng and 20% by Mr. Zeng Yunshu, both of
them are executive Directors and (ii) 380,000 shares held by Mr. Zeng Sheng
as beneficial owner. On December 16, 2009, Grand Prosperity entered into
the First Charge Over Shares in favour of the Security Trustee (acting on
behalf of the Onshore Lender). Under the First Charge Over Shares, Grand
Prosperity has agreed to charge the Grand Prosperity Shares to the Security
Trustee (acting on behalf of the Onshore Lender). The First Charge Over
Shares has been entered into as a continuing security for the Onshore Facility
provided by the Onshore Lender. On December 21, 2009, the Company
entered into the Credit Note with the Third Party, under which the Third Party
has agreed to make available to the Company the Offshore Financing in the
amount of US$40,000,000. The Offshore Financing has a term of two years.
Further, the Company has been advised that on December 21, 2009, Grand
Prosperity entered into the Second Charge Over Shares in favour of the Third
Party, by which Grand Prosperity agreed to charge the Grand Prosperity
Shares to the Third Party as a continuing security for the Offshore Financing.

Lehman Brothers Commercial Corporation Asia Limited (“LBCCA"), which
holds in total of 69,608,000 interests in the Company as beneficial owner,
is owned 50% interests by each of LBCCA Holdings | LLC (“"LBCCA 1") and
LBCCA Holdings Il LLC (“"LBCCA I1"). Both LBCCA | and LBCCA Il themselves
are wholly owned by LB HLD and accordingly, the shares in which LBCCA
are shown to be interested are also included in the shares in which LB HLD
is shown to be interested. The number of shares held and underlying shares
held under equity derivatives have been adjusted based on the information
from LB HLD.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2009 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company had

not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report and within the knowledge
of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the Company's
securities as required under the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, an aggregate of
23,000,000 share options of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
have been granted by the Company to, and accepted by the relevant
employees prior to listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.
On the same day, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholder’s written resolution of the Company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and/or Share Option Scheme,
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2009, a total of 55,951,000 share options were
outstanding which comprised 19,000,000 share options and 36,951,000
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Share
Option Scheme respectively. All share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Options were exercised subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and the Share Option Scheme:

(a)  PRre-IPO SHaARe OpTiONS
Purpose

Recognition of the contributions made by employees of the Group
towards its growth and success.

Exercise Period

Since 22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 unless extended in
writing by the Board (and approved by the independent non-
executive directors) in its absolute discretion. Each of the Pre-
IPO Share Options (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically at the end of such option period.
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D)

(a)

Pre-IPO SHaRe OpTions (ConT'D)

Exercise Price

HK$0.60 per share to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-
IPO Share Options, representing a discount of 75% to the maximum
IPO Offer Price as described in the Prospectus. The exercise price
was determined in recognition of the contributions made to the
Group by the respective grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

Other Conditions

(1

The grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options is subject to the
following additions conditions:

(a)

(b)

(d)

the commencement of dealings in shares;

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options must be
made in full and not in part;

the Pre-IPO Share Options are personal to the relevant
grantees and shall not be transferred or assigned,
and shall constitute a term of the employment of the
relevant grantees by the Group;

the grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall
adhere to any undertaking or restrictions that may
be further imposed on them by the Company, the
Stock Exchange or the sponsor as described in the
Prospectus; and

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall
be further subject to any guidelines issued by the
Company from time to time in order to ensure full
compliance with the Listing Rules.

The grantees shall not dispose of their respective shares
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to them in the following manner:

(a)

in any number greater than 30% of all the shares of
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (2) two years from the Listing Date;
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D)

(a)

(8)

Pre-IPO SHaRe OpTions (ConT'D)

(b)  in any number greater than 60% of all the Shares
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (3) three years from the Listing Date;
and

(c) all the shares issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to them within (4) four years from the
Listing Date.

The Pre-IPO Share Options (if not already exercised) held
by each individual grantee shall lapse automatically upon
cessation of his/her employment with the Group, regardless
of how such cessation of employment arises.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Purpose

Recognize and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees had
made or may make to the Group.

Participants

Eligible participants include:

(a)

any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (" Affiliate”);

the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D)

(8)

SHARE OpTION ScHEME (ConT'D)

Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the nominal value of the share;

(b)  the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c)  the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage

of the issued shares capital that it represents as at the date of

this annual report

104,025,000 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued shares
of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of which,

from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on which such
option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can

be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid

Not applicable.
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SHARE OPTION (ConTt’p) IERE (%)
(8)  SHARE OPTION ScHEME (CONT'D) (8) RAPRAESEI(E])
Remaining life of the scheme ZiTE| 2T F 5
The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017, ZETEEAEM R EREE 201741 A 31
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions H EBETSREEARBRE  B%
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other HE TR AEREM T EES&E TR
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing WA RBH - Rzt alHAEEBERE
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and ¥2017F1 A31 BRI ARETERRFA
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall ETRANES 2 RRE - B BRI
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant, WBEZHRBERTAITE - BEZTE
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme. ZHARE ER °
Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the REZ2009F 12 A31MBIEFER B
Pre-IPO Share Options, during the year ended 31 December 2009 BEA HAEERRRERD 2 RRE
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: FEIT (JRE ETRAE17.07 165
3))
During the year
£
Lapsed/ Exercise price
cancelled TP E Exercise
As ati} Granted  Exercised B&M/ As ati? HK$ period
Category $hl 01.01.2009 2R [SEGy:d S 31.12.2009 BT Eayid
Directors =
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERLT 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Mr. Ouyang Junxin EADIE (P 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Continuous Contracts EAKEE 12,000,000 - - ~ 12,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
Employees 21.02.2012
Total st 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
Notes: Bz -
1. The vesting period for all option granted is six months from the Listing Date. 1. FEERNABREZEZBH AHB LW AR
~MEA -
2. The exercise price of the share options representing a discount of 75% to the 2. RBEZITEERBRERMAZESELR
maximum IPO Offer Price a described in the Prospectus. FEEBIETS% °
3. All outstanding share options as at 31 December 2009 have been exercised 3. FRBER2009F 12 A31 BARTTREZBERED R
subsequent to the balance sheet date. BEABRABEYITE -
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’Dp) wo IR RE (41)
(8)  SHARE OPTION ScHEME (CONT'D) () FRRRFESTEI(E)
Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the REBZE2009F 12 A31BIEFERN  BIE
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2009 RILETEIRE 2 RREESH T (TR
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: B EMRANE17.071&657) :
During the year
ER Exercise
Lapsed/ price
cancelled e Exercise
Date of grant As at Granted  Exercised BAH/ As at HKS period
Category £5l RHAE  01.01.2009 BRH B BE# 31122009 B s
Directors Bz
Dr. LiJun TEET 15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam ~ RE# %= 15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
Continuous Contract HE&HEE 15052007 13,139,000 - - (188,000) 12,951,000 184 15.11.2007-
Employees 14.06.2017
10.10.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 299 10.04.2008
09.10.2017
Consultants B 15.05.2007 18,000,000 - - (5,000,0000 13,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
10.10.2007 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 299 10.10.2008-
09.10.2017
13.02.2008 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 170 13.08.2008-
12.08.2018
Total EH) 62,139,000 - - (25,188,000) 36,951,000
Notes: B3
1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the date of 1. FEERERBEZ ZBHARZEMREEH
acceptance of the offer. Save as the one marked with “#”, the vesting period RBETSMEA - MEZRRENE [#] 5% - EH
is one year from the date of acceptance of the offer. BN R RE AR L B AR —F -
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. RIREZTEEBEEHRSEITARIER
right or bonus issues or other similar changes in the Company's share capital. ARz A E S m e AR -
3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 3. AT R 0 PR ENEEE
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to retained profits. RZBHEREBREREEF -
Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A T 45
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D) o SRR (7))
(c)  FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS (c) RBRENAALEBERBR

RITE 2 R 2 EEF BB B
N —dFAREERAR AR EE
HFtE - BIRENAOFHRERRR
TTRTIMERBIEE A BIEN

The estimate of the fair value of the outstanding share options is
measured based on both the Black-Scholes pricing model and the
binomial lattice model. The contractual life and expectations of early
exercise of the share options were used as inputs into relevant
models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

BIRERI LA B R R

Grant date
B A

31 January 15 May 10 October 13 February
2007 2007 2007 2008
200718318 2007%5815H 20074108108 2008F2513H
Fair value at measurement date RETERENARE HK$0.78 HK$0.47 HK$0.64 HK$0.54
0.78% T 04787 0.6457T 0.5477T
Share price (B N/A HK$1.84 HK$2.93 HK$1.61
TEA 1.84% T 2935 7T 1.617%7T
Exercise price 11018 HK$0.60 HK$1.84 HK$2.99 HK$1.70
0.60/ 7T 1.84% T 2.9957T 1.705% 7T

Expected volatility (expressed as TRER IR (WA 47.9% 48.9% 51.1% 56.2%
weighted average volatility ER PR AR IE
used in the models) EORERT)

Option life (expressed as RIREFH (%S 3 years 3.25 years 10 years 10 years
weighted average life used ER PR AR IE 3F 3.25%F 109 10F
in the models) THERRT)

Expected dividends RHRE 4.4% 3.4% 1.2% 0.0%

Risk-free interest rate (based on ERBFR (JAINE 4.0% 4.2% 43% 2.7%
Exchange Fund Notes) HeZEHE)

Valuation model used RAMNMERS Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes Binomial Binomial

ANz &8l {AhR &8 ZER ZIER

TERRR M8 TOAR IR I 2R 18 (AR FR R Y N 7
B TEHFE)  UHRBEARAANER R
BT TR EI R B RO R ORI NE -

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information.

RIHERR R AOTHRR - ORI Mt B PR
WELR SRR H B R 2 B8 - REEHR
I E B TSR ER o

Share options were granted under a service condition. The condition
has not been taken into account the fair value measurement of
the services received on the grant date. There were no market
conditions associated with the share options granted.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of contributions
to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong Kong's Mandatory
Provident Funds, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code. The Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date as set
out in note 36 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zeng Yunshu
Chairman

16 April 2010
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Corporate Governance Report i~ % &

The Company has always recognised the importance of shareholders
transparency and accountability. It is the belief of the Board that
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good corporate
governance. The Company is committed to ensure high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) acknowledge their
responsibility for preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code") as stated in
Appendix 14 to the Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
which has been revised and the amendments became effective
on 1 January 2009. As far as the Code is concerned, the Company
complies with all aspects of the Code except for the Code of
A.2.1 regarding the separation of roles of chairman and president
(chief executive officer) which, in the Company’s opinion, would
not be appropriate for the adoption by the Company. The role of
chairman and president (chief executive officer) of the Company
are performed by the same individual, Mr. Zeng Yunshu (%%
H@5E42). The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considered
that this structure does not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company
and believes that this structure enables the Group to make and
implement decision promptly and efficiently. Therefore, the Board
are of the view that the role of chairman and president (chief
executive officer) of the Company can be performed by the same
individual. Since 22 December 2009, Mr. Zhang Yijun (5RE5E4)
has been appointed as executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company, the Code of A.2.1 then has been complied with.
The Board believed that after the appointment of Mr. Zhang Yijun
as chief executive officer, the division of responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer could be clearly defined
and identified, which enhances the corporate governance of the
Company to meet future development of the Group.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1E R AR A A
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiry
has been made to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

In addition, the Company has adopted provisions of the Model Code
as written guidelines for relevant employees (as defined in provision
A.5.4 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules) in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the Company. Such relevant employees should
abide by the provisions of the Model Code.

In consideration of the new amendments to the Model Code (the
“Amendments”), which became effective on the 1st quarter of
2009, the Board has revised its Model Code corresponding to the
Amendments.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and to the exercising of independent opinion.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZHANG Yijun (appointed on 22 December 2009)
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan
Mr. ZENG Sheng
Ms. YE Qingdong
Mr. OUYANG Junxin
Dr. HAN Qinchun (resigned on 19 January 2010)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung (appointed on 16 March 2010)

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
24 to page 29 of this annual report.

(B)

(C)
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CoNT’D) (C) HHEE (5)

NumBser oF MEeeTinGgs HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Board normally has 4 scheduled meetings a year and meet at
other times as and when required to review financial and internal
control, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2009, a total number of 12 regular and adhoc Board meetings, 2
audit committee meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings
and 2 nomination committee meeting were held. Minutes of these
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company and
are open for inspection by Directors.

The individual attendance records of each Director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee during the year ended 31
December 2009 are set out below:

BEITERRHFENRE

EFC-MEFRTIRGHE UEA
FERRTEIRIAERNY B LA
et RREIRE - ARKEREEE
4E e BE2009F12A3TBHILEFER
ARBATR2ACHEEESSSE
IREBHREECCH® 2XAFNEEES
BR2ORBERZEGEHE - ZZTFENL
BEARRARWERT  TAHEE
=BR[] -

HZE 2009412 A31 BILFER - K44
PEMNBUNEEFLEEESEE B
ZEg FNEESRIEEZESNE
R FE 4885 T

Attendance/Number of Meetings entitled to attend

B BREEESENRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors BEHEK £xg BEREEE FMzEE REZEE
Mr. ZENG Yunshu BERLE 12/12 - 2/2 -
Mr. ZHANG Yijun' REHGE mn - - -
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan RERFTE 12/12 - - -
Mr. ZENG Sheng Bk 12/12 - - -
Ms. YE Qingdong EERLLT 1212 - - -
Mr. OUYANG Junxin BRF5 &5 S A 12/12 - - -
Dr. HAN Qinchun? S i 9/12 - - -
Dr. LI Jun F BEEL 3/12 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam  SREM4ELE 3/12 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. WANG Fosong THmEE 3/12 2/2 - 2/2
Mr. LI Wai Keung® B ES NA(TER)  NACRER) NAMNER) NACTER)

Notes: MEE -

1. Mr. ZHANG Yijun appointed on 22 December 2009.

2. Dr. HAN Qinchun resigned on 19 January 2010.
3. Mr. LI Wai Keung appointed on 16 March 2010.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8 E

(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’D) (C) EFe (H)

REsPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to ensure that there is a competent
executive management which is able to run the Company in a sound
and efficient manner. The Board is also responsible for establishing
the Company's business strategies and plans from time to time
to ensure that the operations of the Company are conducted
effectively.

The Board is responsible for preparation of the financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements, the generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board also conducts appropriate internal control procedures and
reviews risk management strategies and polices of the Company to
ensure that the Company runs its business in compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements with prudence and integrity.

REesPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

Each executive director is delegated individual authority and
responsibility to oversee and monitor the operations of a specific
business unit, and to implement the strategies and polices set
out by the Board. The independent non-executive directors
provide independent opinion and share their knowledge and
experiences with the other members of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee.

ANNUAL CoNFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NlON-EXEcUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination
committee consider all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Terms oF Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORs

Each of the non-executive and/or independent non-executive
directors has been appointed to hold the office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In addition, the appointment of each of
the non-executive and/or independent non-executive directors is
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association.

EFZSRERRTHREBRRBREARA
HERBHLE  WIARHTERARE
TEREE RETE] - DRERB NG E -

EFga AREMB®RE - NREAEMTE
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BERFEMHE GG

EFeMETEEAMERERF IR
SRR A LR E IR AR R - DARE
RADBEFEMBEN REERTH
BRTREM AU LT

EEEE

BERTEFHEANREEERERFE
EBBANEE UHTESSREN
RO R - BUFRITERRIBL
BER OTHRERE BERLZEG FHH
ZEghEEZERHMKE D T
RO R A By

BUFNTESNFERIE

ARBEWRENGBIIEATESRE
ERRAEIIBGE LA FEBILRER
E-EFSNREBZEGRA MAE
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FHTESEH
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(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The RC comprises the following four members:

(i) Dr. Li Jun, chairman of RC (independent non-executive

director);

(ii) Mr. Zeng Yunshu (executive director and chairman of the
Board);

(i)~ Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director);
and

(iv)  Mr. Li Wai Keung (independent non-executive director).

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management. During the year ended
31 December 2009, a total number of 2 meetings were held to
determine the remuneration policy for Directors and/or senior
management. The attendance records of the RC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 50 of this annual report.

The RC has primary responsibility for making recommendations
for approval by the Board with respect to matters relating to the
remuneration of the executive directors of the Company. The major
responsibilities of the RC are:

(i) to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(ii) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors for the Board's
approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv)  to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company's share option scheme.

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the RC. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (E) HEREHY

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with written
terms of reference as suggested under the code provision under the
Code. The AC comprises the following four members, all of them
are independent non-executive directors:

i) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (chairman of AC),
ii) Dr. Li Jun;

i) Mr. Wang Fosong; and

iv)  Mr. Li Wai Keung.

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve the
Group's financial reporting process and internal control system.
During the year ended 31 December 2009, a total number of 2
meetings were held. The attendance records of the AC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 50 of this annual report.

The AC acknowledged the new amendments to the terms of
reference of the AC under the Listing Rules became effective
1 January 2009 in relation to, inter alias, abolishment of the
requirement of appointment of qualified accountant and the
amendments to the terms of reference of the AC and thereafter
appropriate actions have been taken by the Board and the AC
accordingly.

The major responsibilities of the AC are:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Company’s external
auditor, and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process;

(ii) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to
review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues
contained therein;

(i) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems; and

(iv)  to discuss with the management the system of internal
controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged
its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2009
have been reviewed by the AC.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (ConT’p)

(F)

AuDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the fees paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

(E) ®HZHT (5)

BB A &

HZE2009F12 A31 BILFE © stz em
M A5 B R B A SR &I AR
meEft, A TR ERNT

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

Nature of services R MEE FET FET

Audit 1ZE 1,800 1,800

Others HAh 308 600

Total HE5T 2,108 2,400
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (F) REZEY

The Board has established a nomination committee (“NC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The members of nomination committee are
independent non-executive directors, namely:

i) Mr. Wang Fosong (chairman of NC);
ii) Dr. Li Jun;

i) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam; and

iv)  Mr. Li Wai Keung.

The NC meets at least once a year to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board's succession. During the year ended 31 December 2009,
a total number of 2 meetings were held. The attendance records
of the nomination committee, on a named basis, are set out under
section of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 50
of this annual report.
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(F)

(G)

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8 E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (ConT’D)

The major responsibilities of the NC are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the president (chief executive officer).

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the NC. The retirement by rotation of the following Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have been approved by the NC:—

ExecuTtive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZHANG Yijun
Ms. YE Qingdong
Mr. OUYANG Junxin

INnDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the Group’'s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and AC also conduct periodic
reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. The internal control system includes a well established
corporate structure and organisation with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and authority. Each department is responsible
for its daily operations, and is also required to implement and
monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and
effective employment of the resources of the Company, in order
to avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the
Company'’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.
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(G)

(H)

INTERNAL CONTROL(CONT’D)

The Board and AC assess the effectiveness of the internal control
system and procedures based on information derived from
discussions with the management of the Company and its external
auditor. The Board and AC believe that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the Group. The Group has a defined goal
for each department to accomplish, these goals were discussed
in the Board meeting and pass on to the management through
the executive directors. These goals will be implemented and
closely monitored by the executive directors who shall review the
operational and financial results from time to time, and to take any
necessary actions for the improvement of it business activities.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community
at large. The Company provides information in relation to the
Company and its business in its annual report which is to be
dispatched to shareholders of the Company on a timely basis. The
Group's corporate website (http://www.hlkg.net/) also provides an
effective communication medium through which the public and
investors can obtain updated information about the Group.
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PN

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hong Long Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Long
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 59 to 152, which
comprise the consolidated and the company balance sheets as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FBEERERDARE
BN BENR S
(REESHBAMELHFRAE])

AR ERED (VAT fEAE [ 324P1 ) B2 15 M 55 59
AEF152 ABEZEERARAR ([ARHE])H
RAMBRE - WEA VMR EIEN 2009 F
12 A3 HWERE RAREERBEREBEZA
LFFEENGEAEZERAR  RaEaZ e RN
HARERNEBR  UREIZSFTHRMERE
fi L AR R

B Sl T B HOR R S Y H AT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

ERAREERAEEREEEZHORGRMA
B8 B 7 i 2 Rl R BB A AR DI ey B R 2
RGEREAEEMA VI BZENERE - &
AERREER  BRk#EEFREAEMA
i 51 ¥R B 75 R AR R RO R RRIE S - DA AT
RN FAEBNREFRER MR EARER
Bt ERENEREENSIEE  REER
TEHAERERHA

A% B #) AT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

BAMEERRBERMNEREZZENBRE
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considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

B 22 4 51 3R B 75 3 AR R O O BRI - IA
RETEENERIEF - BAFA/HRANHAZ
ZHINREERRER - BRI BHEMEERMN
RANEBRENSEMERAEHOR A5
AN - URFHEAGRROERI RO -

HAEE - ROIPTESOFZERE 7R ME
B RRMANERE RIRHER -

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the group as at 31
December 2009 and of the group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 April 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4482 EWER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #(Z 20094 12 /31 A 1FE/E

2009 2008
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ek AR®ET T ARETT
Turnover I=E -0 4 &13 362,369 119,628
Cost of sales SHERA (274,903) (73,716)
Gross profit EA 87,466 45,912
Other net income H e 558 5 64,964 37,097
Other revenue E AU A 6 31,071 55,491
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (21,775) (5,226)
General and administrative expenses — M &ITEE (35,304) (32,273)
Other operating expenses Efh @& (10,711) (40,831)
Net increase in fair value of KREYER D ER
investment properties EINFEE 16 56,830 62,120
Profit from operations FEd— el 172,541 122,290
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $TAE£ R T A
financial instruments R EREE)FHE 23(b) (19,994) 58,533
Finance costs BhE R A 7(a) (87,843) (90,227)
Profit before taxation G Tp| 7 64,704 90,596
Income tax FriS%t 8(a) (33,497) (87,236)
Profit and total comprehensive REEHER R 2EINEEEE
income for the year 31,207 3,360
Attributable to: BTSN FEAh -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR &z R 32,699 3,546
Minority interests DERR R (1,492) (186)
Profit and total comprehensive REEHER R E2EINEREE
income for the year 31,207 3,360
Earnings per share BREF
(RMB cents) (AR¥ES) 12
Basic BN 3.14 0.34
Diluted g 3.13 0.34
The notes on pages 66 to 152 form part of these financial statements. £ 66 HE% 152 BRI B A SRz ey — &
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company P o FERTAN D BIRE 2R IR FE (G AN GE 0% Rl 2 AR &
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 30(b). SRR HIEE 30(b) ©
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A & 59
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Consolidated Balance Sheet I EEE B R

At 31 December 2009 20094 12531 H

2009 2008
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B e ARETT ARBTIT
Non-current assets IFRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz~ BB R 14 9,921 11,053
Investment properties AW 16 1,376,436 1,319,606
Deferred tax assets ERETIREE 28(b) 49,947 38,249
.....1436304 1,368,908 __
Current assets MENEE
Inventories rE 17 2,042,233 1,602,452
Trade and other receivables JiE U B 0 e EL A R U R 18 697,519 528,486
Prepaid land costs T LA AR 19 85,596 219,549
Trading securities BEERS 20 4,519 967
Pledged deposits HEHRFR 22 73,569 59,846
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERKER S 216,950 44,102
I 3,120,386 2,455,402
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREHMEE 24 375,800 510,124
Trade and other payables, and accruals FEfHERFR « EfbEN R MIEIRE R 25 478,033 402,576
Receipts in advance TEURBR X 26 82,257 86,094
Rental and other deposits e rH MRS 27 11,743 11,129
Taxation payable FERBIIE 28(a) 262,552 245,652
.....1210385 | 1,255,575
Net current assets RENEEFE 1910001 1,199,827
Total assets less current liabilites EE&E/RRHEE 000 3,346,305 2,568,735
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings e 23 1,393,834 699,725
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIA B & 28(b) 231,634 209,207
_..... 1625468 908932
Net assets EEFE 1,720,837 1,659,803
60 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Consolidated Balance Sheet S5 EEEEBE

At 31 December 2009 20094 12531 H

2009 2008
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ek ARBTT ARETT
Capital and reserves EARR #E
Share capital &N 30(c) 10,296 10,296
Reserves (] 1,707,809 1,636,425
Total equity attributable to equity 2N TR
shareholders of the Company PE(LRER AR 1,718,105 1,646,721
Minority interests DE R RRER 2,732 13,082
Total equity e AR 1,720,837 1,659,803
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors (the “Board’) ZExe([Z2F€)R201054 B 16 B EIW %
on 16 April 2010. HETIEE o
Zeng Yunshu Zhang Yijun
ZEE RE
Director Director
EE BF
The notes on pages 66 to 152 form part of these financial statements. 66 B E£5 152 BRI B A B RKRH —FB
B
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A & 61
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Balance Sheet EE& &%

At 31 December 2009 20094 12531 H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables
Pledged deposits

Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Taxation payable

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 16 April 2010.

Zeng Yunshu

Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 66 to 152 form part of these financial statements.
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Note
Bt

15

18
22

25

Z3)

30(a)

2009 2008
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
25 130
1,192,955 1,087,055
| _...1,192,980_ [uu 1087185
26,733 22,303
- 31,849
60,115 28,161
I 86,843 NN 82313 __
142,054 38,110
4,333 -
I 146,387 NN 38110 __
... 139539) [ | . 44203
oo1Assaa 1131388 _
I 293,157 NN
840,284 611,663
10,296 10,296
829,988 601,367
840,284 611,663

FE220201054 A 16 B AT RRETEE -

Zhang Yijun
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Director
EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s SRS B &R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #(Z 20094 12 /31 A 1FE/E

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KR ARERRES

Statutory
Share Share  Merger reserve  Capital Retained Minority Total
capital premium  reserve fund  reserve profits Total interests  equity

9

BR BORE AGHE FEEES AAEE RENA 4% RRER mueE
Note  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mt ARBTT ARBTR ARMTE ARBTL ARBTL ARETE ARETR ABRTR ARKTR

Balance at 1 January 2008 14200841 10 &84 10,296 579,466 24,227 42,488 41,331 929,650 1,627,458 12,268 1,639,726
Changes in equity for 2008: 2008 F1Ex= 2 :
Total comprehensive income A2 ANG 2%

for the year - - - - - 3,546 3,546 (186) 3,360
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEZAT

fund e - - - 1,537 = (1,537) = = =
Equity-settled share-based  FRIEEE AR BERE

payments iofDE 29(b) - - - - 15717 - 15717 - 15717
Share options cancelled BEEHRRRE 29(b) - - - - (6926) 6926 - - -
Establishment of a subsidiary 7 Bl 2 —F]

in the PRC HBAR = = - - - - - 1,000 1,000

Balance at 31 December 2008 14200812 B 31 A%

and at 1 January 2009 R2009%1 A 1B &8k 10,296 579,466 24,227 44,025 50,122 938585 1,646,721 13,082 1,659,803
Changes in equity for 2009: 2009 F1Ex 2 :
Total comprehensive income A 2 ANG 2%

for the year - - - - - 32,699 32,699 (1492) 31,207
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEZAT
fund e - - - 5,348 - (5,348) - - -
Share options cancelled [aRS:lit 29(b) - - - - (17667) 17,667 - - -
Partial disposal of interest &R —HHBARN
in a subsidiary AR - - - - - 232 2832 3075 31427
Acquisition of additional WE-RNEARN
interest in a subsidiary FMER - - - - - 10333 10,333  (11933) (1,600
Balance at 31 December 2009 22009412 F 31 B&# 10,296 579,466 24,227 49,373 32455 1,022,288 1,718,105 2,732 1,720,837
The notes on pages 66 to 152 form part of these financial statements. $66EEF 152 MBI ERE N —IP
5o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z2 5 EHREFE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #(Z 20094 12 A 31 A 1FE/E

2009 2008
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B eE ARBTT ARBTT
Operating activities RETER
Profit before taxation B8 A A 64,704 90,596
Adjustments for: AEIER
~ interest income —FISHA 6 (9,766) (26,640)
— finance costs —REKA 7(a) 87,843 90,227
— amortisation and depreciation — B RIiTE 7(c) 2,754 2,908
— gain on repurchases of Senior Note —BEBRERBN KR 5 (73,128) =
— losses on disposal of property, —HEWE  BERE
plant and equipment BB 5 12 67
— net increase in fair value of —REMENARED
investment properties EINFEER 16 (56,830) (62,120)
— net change in fair value of —TELRT AR
derivative financial instruments RAENEEFE 23(b) 19,994 (58,533)
— net realised and unrealised —BEFSFNBEERR
(gains)/losses on trading REE (W), BIEFE
securities 3 (552) 3,097
— equity-settled share-based payments — IRAELEE DARR D BRI 3R 29(b) - 15,717
— impairment losses on trade and — FER SR S L At MR
other receivables KR EEE - 19,104
— dividend income —BEWA (24) (24)
- net exchange losses/(gains) —EREE (W) 558 6,292 (55,966)
Operating profit before changes in SEELEHH
working capital A ST 41,299 18,433
Increase in inventories FEEM (246,980) (352,706)
Increase in trade and other receivables U AR R B2 Lt FE MR (134,592) (23,815)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits ~ HE#E (10) /54 (13,723) 116,687
Decrease in trade and other FERARIR - EAERT K
payables, and accruals BIRERRD (21,887) (40,526)
(Decrease)fincrease in receipts in advance  TEUERIX CRid>) /AN (3,837) 51,442
Increase in rental and other deposits AERE IR SIEM 614 185
Cash used in operations EEHANRE (379,106) (230,400)
PRC income tax paid EARGE e (6,388) (12,632)
Net cash used in operating activities K& ZBEAHIREFE (385,494) (243,032)

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZR8EHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #(Z 20094 12 /31 A 1FE/E

2009 2008
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BiE ARBTR ARBTFT
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEWI% « BE K& E 14 (1,652) (2,835)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEKRE
plant and equipment {3 30E 396 11
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WHEE AR - Hkk
cash acquired ERHNHRS - (84,589)
Acquisition of additional interest U iE—FEIPH B A RV B AME
in a subsidiary (1,600) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary Y& —REKIB A S NEEE (32,600) -
Proceeds from partial disposal of interest in & B A 7B DS HIE
a subsidiary 35,000 -
Purchase of trading securities BABEZH (3,000) (9,030)
Proceeds from sale of trading securities & B EEAFT{S7E - 8,699
Interest received B KA S 7,251 20,861
Contribution by minority shareholder LERRLE - 1,000
Dividend income received BHRE 24 24
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBHEE(BH)WRLSFH
investing activites 3819 | (65,859)
Financing activities MEEE
Drawdown of bank loans REURITE R 1,489,541 330,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (526,170) (259,573)
Repurchases of Senior Note BRIELRE (290,585) =
Interest paid BERFIE (118,261) (110,533)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETEEES(BH)NESFE
financing activites | 554,525 | (40,106)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RITERRB SN O ) B8
at bank and in hand 172,850 (348,997)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EZ#E)f5/2 (2) (4,002)
Cash at bank and in hand at 1 January 18 1BHBTERRES 44,102 397,101
Cash at bank and in hand at 12 A 31 NIRRT ER KRS
31 December 216,950 44,102

The notes on pages 66 to 152 form part of these financial statements. F66EEF 152 AWM FB AR BRI —3B
2o
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66

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

E -3

Hong Long Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business
is 8/F., Hong Long Building, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, 518067, the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
has its registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box

2681, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEERERAR(ARA]D A—R
RASESFMRZMUZAEER
AR EEEEWBURPEARKE
AE (A E ) R L e R E s
e K =81 (I 4 : 518067) + i &t fii
#EER(I Cricket Square * Hutchins
Drive * PO Box 2681 ' George Town -
Grand Cayman KY1-1111 - the Cayman
Islands °

LS L

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
Annual Report 2009 —Z & H F 53R
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial statements is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, which is the functional and reporting currency of
the Group.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 2(f));

- financial instruments classified as trading securities
(see note 2(d)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 39.

Notwithstanding the Company’s net current liabilities of
RMB59,539,000 as at 31 December 2009, the Company’s
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis on the strength that certain liabilities of the Company
were settled through the issuance of ordinary shares as set
out in note 25(c)(i).

(b)

BIBHRN 2 MERE
BEARIEIN - RNMBRRIARE

EHINEREHREE - ARK(A
RE)mE - WHARESELNT
7_E o

HZ 20094 12 A 31 HILFEH4R
AUBERRBEARARRENEA
Rl (#TEA TAE®E]) -

R BBRR PR G ERERE
LA ETHEERABZRER
A EFIER (20T PR & A & 5T R
FrAEE) :

-  KBEMEGRKE20)

- SHBEABEEZESFMEMIA
(BHEE2(d) + &

— TEEmIA(RMNE2(e)) °

RIBEBW G IMEERRAEANT
BRE - EREAMFEBRER
MEE  8fF WA AXAEH
BV RRIEH FIET - BEFRBRR ©
st XA RR TR BB A B R i
BRBRTHERAENSEL M
RA=REE  BERKAEEEM
KRLETBAZ RN EERE B
EEMEE FIREEHE - BRARRK
BRINZEMET o

fhat R RR IR EEEER -
SR NERT MR FEERTH
fl - BB BTN ZERER -
ESCHEZ ST T LIRS
ERT AR B AR REA R HERR o

EREEERTREYEERE
R o0 B 75 SR R B i =t T
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BENRARN2009F12 A31HZ
BB EFERARKS9,539,000
T BERAARETARBEER
BATERR T LAGHE (AHEE25(c)
(I)VFTEL) - MAR B HIRE TH %
FEICEE LIRS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

& EBOR (1)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
minority interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and
any further losses applicable to the minority, are charged
against the Group's interest except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated
all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
Annual Report 2009 —E & L FF 3R
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Cont’d)

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 2(l), (m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’'s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(i).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are
as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation technigues whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in notes
2(s)(iii) and 2(s)(iv).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EEEHHBOR (A1)

(f)

(g)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(s)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note
2(h)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

- Motor vehicles 5 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(g)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 2 FEEEIEOR ()
(h) Leased assets (h) HEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of MAERREEBR— L —EER

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines S LB ETEEEZ FRERR

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset EHEEBR AR —FEREER

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment I RIBEEAZEERERE - A

or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based BRE TR R R I E AR -

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is MAmBRALEREBAELAZ
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form HE -

of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) & K [y B A 7 48
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which AEERERERBNEE
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and i 1 A 5B 5 BT 75 4 =, g £ ]
rewards of ownership are classified as being held R = AR E B E T AIERE
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer MEHEFEEE - AKX
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to 2o BT A R R 2 [ 2R i =
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the REERFEERIZIED L
following exceptions: EIRE o ATERAN ¢
= property held under operating leases that would - KEPEBETHEN

otherwise meet the definition of an investment ME - ERFEREY
property is classified as investment property on ¥ENTEE  FRER
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as MENEESFBK
investment property, is accounted for as if held BYME: BERADER
under a finance lease (see note 2(f); and ‘AW - AIEER
BREEEREMHE

ABR(RMEE2(0)) &

= land held for own use under an operating lease, - BRELEHEERESR
the fair value of which cannot be measured Aet+i - ERARE
separately from the fair value of a building RS HEERETRE
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, ME L FREEY
is accounted for as being held under a finance MARBEIHAGE
lease, unless the building is also clearly held AZBERERER
under an operating lease. For these purposes, B AR HEZE
the inception of the lease is the time that the LY RBERBREL
lease was first entered into by the Group, or EHREFHFRRSI -
taken over from the previous lessee. BITZEBH  BF
HENEHALEER

BRFYMEE %A
SERTAMERIK -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(h) Leased assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EEEHHBOR (8)

(h) Leased assets (Cont'd)

(iii)

Operating lease charges (Cont’d)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified
as an investment property (see note 2(f)) or is held for
development for sale (see note 2(j)(i).

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Investments in trade and other current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(i) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables and

other financial assets are carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 2 FEEEIEOR ()
(i)  Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (i) BERMEGE)

(i) Impairment of receivables (Cont'd) (i) JENE AR E (&)
Impairment losses are written off against the REBENEERIEEEE
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment FREE - MEBLET AR AR SR
losses recognised in respect of trade and other e L At R KR (L T U [0 1 4
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful R EE DA TER i A FE T A
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses ) M RERBSREE RSN -
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance FEIBERT - RERAVR(EE
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is BAEBIRGES - E A5 E
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written TR AL UL [l FE UK BR SR i =
off against trade and other receivables directly and T H kB - AT YR [B] £ F8 Al
any amounts held in the allowance account relating T 9 6 PR i BR 3R K EL At g
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of I BR X S FE MR BR PR BE R 1B
amounts previously charged to the allowance account EIRBEEI 58T T AR
are reversed against the allowance account. Other E - SCRIfEEBRPETIRZ
changes in the allowance account and subsequent SRR - E AR
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly BRAP B - EFHIRAE b
are recognised in profit or loss. B & B 1% W (5] 5 AT B B eE

B FRIRI N R SR ©

(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BMEEABE

Internal and external sources of information are rEEeESEEEARBR

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify B2ERIAMINREE -

indications that the following assets may be impaired E N EERS HIRREDR

or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer £ AT ERE R EEE

exists or may have decreased: BT HEFEL I REE &R

Ao

= investments in subsidiaries; - RHEBARMNKE

= property, plant and equipment; - U - BEREE

= properties for future development and under - XARABRFHEN
development for sale; and BERAYE R

= pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as - SHEANUKLHERN
being held under an operating lease. THE =B

e
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(i) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D) 2 BEEFFIBUR (8)
(i)  Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (i) BERMEGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d) (i) B EERE (&)
= Reversals of impairment losses - RBRORESEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been MR AEEE AT Y E
a favourable change in the estimates used to SHEMNMEEETHE
determine the recoverable amount. EEZL  BEEE
EEfE o
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to B # Bl B9 R B 5 18 12
the asset’s carrying amount that would have RBRIBEFEERE
been determined had no impairment loss T R AT {r] B 1B /5 48 T
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of EUEEMNEERT
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in B - FT# [0 R (E Es 18
the year in which the reversals are recognised. EERE B B FE st

ABEA °

(i)  Inventories i)y =&

Inventories in respect of property development activities are HY) EREEDEBONTFEIRKA

carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and KT RERENRIEE AR -

net realisable values are determined as follows: AR EIFEAEFAAT ¢

(i) Property for future development and under development (i)  KEKEERFLERZEEL
for sale V/ES
The cost of properties for future development and RRFAERFLHENEREF
under development for sale comprises specifically W) 2 YR AR R R B R E MR
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of AAERK ¢ BHE L R U BB AR
land, aggregate cost of development, materials AN~ REFFBEKA - ME R
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an HE  IEREMEERE
appropriate apportion of overheads and borrowing B #@8gr28RARERE
costs capitalised (see note 2(u)). Net realisable value BERAN(RMEE2(u)) o A
represents the estimated selling price less estimated B FEEBHETNEERE
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling ST IR R EWEFRT
the property. EERKA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(i)

(k)

U]

Inventories (Cont'd)

(ii) Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less costs
to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EEEHHBOR (A1)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments is a derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as a derivative financial
instrument are recognised at their fair values at the date
of issue. Changes in fair values in subsequent periods are
recognised through profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(1) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(p) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(ii)

(ifi)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the PRC are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred, to the
extent that they are not capitalise as properties under
development for sale.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using a valuation technique,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

&t R (81

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arsing from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#55) » A EETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(q)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

(q)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(B=EHTESN - AARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EEEHHBOR (A1)

(q) Income tax (Cont'd)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. \Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH55) » A RETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEFBOR ()

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Cont'd)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Er5BH#59) » AN EETTIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D) 2 EEFFBOR (H)
(s)  Revenue recognition (s) WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WA THRE W ERRERARE

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the PR EEEREATERARE

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue B RURA KA (L@ ) 1] T 2%

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is BT ERMART - REZAERA

recognised in profit or loss as follows: AR ¢

(i) Sale of properties (i) HEYE
Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for FHEHEMEEEHRAR
sale is recognised when the significant risks and BEEEMERNEZZRAR K
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the WM T ERKER - AEE
buyers. The Group considers that the significant risks REMEENEZEE KR
and rewards of ownership are transferred when the MEMETR R HEER
properties are completed and delivered to the buyers. REHER o SHEWMERA
Revenue from sale of properties excludes business TEELSER K EMIEER
tax and other sales related taxes and is after deduction BARLIE - 0 B IR & 2
of any trade discounts. Deposits and instalments P40 o UL AFER B HA AT 5k
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue HEMERMBIES ko H
recognition are included in the balance sheet under M3 Bt ABEABBERDN
receipts in advance. TEUGRIEA °

(i) Rental income from operating leases (i) ARESFHERHZIHA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is KEFREHNREKAESKAR
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over TSR E M - 2558
the periods covered by the lease term, except where RIBREAER - BEEAM
an alternative basis is more representative of the E R T E R R ML AR
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the B8 B T A R s A8 U RRE
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised BIpRSN - HEREINIBER
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate Fh SR A FE UG AR B N ak 4a
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are BRAKID - HRBEER
recognised as income in the accounting period in which EEANETHERERA
they are earned. Revenue excludes business tax or WA o IMATBIEEER &
other sales related taxes. B fth S5 &S AR RAT IR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2 EEEHBOR ()

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETITR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EEEHHBOR (8)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2

EHEEHEOR (5D

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(w)

7 EbER &
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i

B

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments

to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,

the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial

statements:

HKFRS 8, Operating segments

HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— improving disclosures about financial instruments
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETITR)

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

B RFBORSE B) (4

- HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

- Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — vesting
conditions and cancellations

- HK(IFRIC) 15, Agreements for the construction of real estate

The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2, HKFRS 8 and
Interpretation HK(IFRIC) 15 have had no material impact on
the Group's financial statements as the amendments and
interpretations were consistent with policies already adopted by the
Group. The impact of the remainder of these developments on the
financial statements is as follows:

- As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of
changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses
in a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity.
All other items of income and expense are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the new presentation. This change in presentation has no
effect on reported profit or loss, total income and expense or
net assets for any period presented.

- As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in note 31(f) about the fair value measurement of the
Group's financial instruments, categorising these fair
value measurements into a three-level fair value hierarchy
according to the extent to which they are based on
observable market data. The Group has taken advantage
of the transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for the newly
required disclosures about the fair value measurements of
financial instruments has not been provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

ST (40

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)" comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs
which the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments. Of these, the following amendment has
resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies:

- As a result of amendments to HKAS 40, /nvestment
property, investment property which is under
construction will be carried at fair value at the earlier of
when the fair value first becomes reliably measurable
and the date of completion of the property. Any gain or
loss will be recognised in profit or loss, consistent with
the policy adopted for all other investment properties
carried at fair value. Previously such property was
carried at cost until the construction was completed,
at which time it was fair valued with any gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. As the Group does
not currently have any investment property under
construction, this change in policy has no impact on net
assets or profit or loss for any of the periods presented.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a
result, as from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries, whether out of pre-or post-acquisition profits,
will be recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee will not
be reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed to be
impaired as a result of the investee declaring the dividend.
In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income in
profit or loss, the Company would recognise an impairment
loss. In accordance with the transitional provisions in the
amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively to
any dividends receivable in the current or future periods and
previous periods have not been restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B-SEH#S) » LU RETSHT)

4 TURNOVER 4

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties and rental
income and management fee during the year, net of business
tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed, after
eliminating intra-group transactions. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as

AEENEZEBHETR BN EY XM
BRWERE -

EEBRANERHEBANRLRZRNAE
EANHEEMERARBSKARER
ERRA(EHNBREXETR K EMHERH
BIBRIT) - REERN - EREEERE
RHEEZWRSENSENT

follows:
2009 2008
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Sales of properties HEMZE 289,360 64,147
Rental income and management fee HeWAREEER 73,009 55,481
362,369 119,628
5  OTHER NET INCOME 5 HoAh s A
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Gain on repurchases of Senior Note (note 23(b)) & [El& f =ik a9 Yk e (FisE 23(b)) 73,128 =
Losses on disposal of property, HEYE - BE X
plant and equipment RiEEE (12) (67)
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) BEEEHFNEER R
on trading securities KERE /(E518) F58 552 (3,097)
Net exchange (losses)/gains P& X (E518),Meas T 58 (8,704) 40,261
64,964 37,097
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

* UABRBITIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k55 H#55)

OTHER REVENUE 6  HALA
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Interest income FE U A 9,766 26,640
Reversal of impairment losses BERMBRARE
on loans and advances R E 15,920 =
Compensation income on cancellation FEHIE AR Y
of swap agreement BEEUA - 27,994
Others HAh 5,385 857
31,071 55,491
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 o A i ¥t )
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): FRBEADEM B HRR,(GEA)
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
(a)  Finance costs (a) AEAA
Interest on bank loans and other ARAFAZIBERAER
borrowings wholly repayable ERREMEERE
within five years 32,105 46,314
Interest on Senior Note BAERAE 86,460 89,813
Total interest expense on financial WIEFE BB RIAR R EFIER
liabilities not at fair value MR B ENT S EREE
through profit or loss 118,565 136,127
Less: interest expense capitalised A AEBAER A
as properties under FHENERBYE*
development for sale * (30,722) (45,900)
87,843 90,227
@ The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates e BEKAEDRIREFNEN T

ranging from 4.05% to 10.00% per annum (2008: 5.18% to

9.07% per annum).

4.05% % 10.0% (2008 & : F 7
&5.18%%9.07%) FIAE AL -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B-SEH#S) » LU RETSHT)

BB Al e A1 (A8

BBADENE MR, (GEA) : ()

7  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 7

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd)

94

2009 2008
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
(o)  Staff costs (b) EBIAE

Equity-settled share-based IRIEREE AR BERRH
payments (note 29) R (BEE29) - 342
Wages, salaries and other staff costs TE HFeREMEIAAR 19,674 17,859
19,674 18,201

Including: BE

Retirement scheme contributions RONETEIHEER 1,107 839

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group's subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The Group made contributions of RMB1,071,000 (2008:
RMB795,000) to the scheme during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme"”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately. The
Group made contributions of HK$41,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB36,000) (2008: RMB44,000) to the
scheme during the year.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond
the annual contributions described above.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JER& 1= AR A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

7  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 7 BRFiETERA) (4)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd) BREATDREF SR (GEA) (&)
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT ARBFT

(c)  Other items: (c) AMIEH -
Amortisation of leasehold land HEmEs 00 1,268 1,268
Depreciation e 2,376 2,544
Less: amounts capitalised as properties B BEREMEREF
under development for sale HEMNERFPYZE (890) (904)
o 1486 . 1.640
Total amortisation and depreciation R AT E 2,754 2,908
Auditor’s remuneration (e Gl e
— audit services — LR 1,616 1,592
— other services —E AR 271 533
Operating lease charges in respect of LEViEby ES
sub-leased properties HEER 8,220 10,082
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKAR 255,412 57,240
Impairment losses on loans and advances ERRBR R EEE - 15,920
Impairment losses on prepayments A ORERE - 3,184
Rental income from investment properties LEMERNHESIA (56,168) (39,542)
Rental income from sub-leased properties EIRYEERESIA (16,841) (15,939)
Gross rental income FEVER AL ON (73,009) (55,481)
Less: direct outgoings (note) A BERE () 19,491 16,476
(53,518) (39,005)
Contingent rental income SRS UA (775) (319)
Note: Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges in respect WEE: ERAXEEEANECEHESR
of sub-leased properties and management fee expenses. AREEEMY -
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& 1= E R A A 95
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B-SEH#S) » LU RETSHT)

96

8  INCOME TAX 8 At
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HFEEZEKZTANBIEE :
comprehensive income:
2009 2008
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current tax AEATR IR
Provision for PRC Corporate REZHEME
Income Tax for the year FemiEs 16,085 16,059
Land Appreciation Tax B ER
— Provision for the year —F A% 6,683 328
— Overprovision in respect of prior years — — VAR [E BB %M - (989)
I 6683 661)__
R 22,768 ___ 15,398
Deferred tax IEIERITE
Origination and reversal of TR ERRELE KRR
temporary differences 10,729 5,757
Effect of changes in tax rate on RSB YRR B SR
opening deferred tax balances 0)-2 - 66,081
A 10,729 71,838 __
33,497 87,236

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as the Group
does not have estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax is based on
a statutory rate of 256% of the taxable profits determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations
in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2009, except
for certain subsidiaries of the Group located within the
special economic zones in the PRC for which the applicable
preferential tax rate is 20% for 2009. The preferential tax
rate will be gradually increased to 22%, 24% and 25%
for the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively. Accordingly, the deferred tax of the Group is
recognised based on tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JER& 1= AR A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

P i (A1)

8  INcoME TaXx (CoNT’D) 8

FEREBRERANTIERE @ (8)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)
comprehensive income: (Cont'd)

AEEHEMERNMERE L
BE{EEIEA30% 2 60% K] R HE
M EET - RIBEEER
Bl - EHIEER TR EWEMS
SRIE R AT 0 R B 2 (B 48 4 5 AR
EHRESE BERARAEME
BERHAS)FE -

Land Appreciation Tax is levied on properties developed by
the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditure including
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditure.

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and (b) REBAHERTEMNERFIIES HE
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: BB AR ¢
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Profit before taxation FRA5 A o A 64,704 90,596
Notional tax on profit before IR 20%
taxation, calculated at 20% (20084F : 18% ) st HE HIBRBLAT
(2008: 18%) in Shenzhen A BB R FIR 12,941 16,307
Effect of changes in tax rate on Tt =B B HERWIRAE T 1
opening deferred tax balances ERRRR R - 66,081
Tax effect of different tax FEE M RF = [E Y
rates in other locations HIBTE (703) 1,486
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERT R AR T TE R 2 (17,657) (1,965)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A TR 2 30,266 4,365
Tax effect of unused tax RFAERRE AT EEIEN
losses not recognised BHIEx & 1,899 1,484
Land Appreciation Tax THEIEETL 6,683 (661)
Others Efth 68 139
Actual tax expense BERBIE H 33,497 87,236
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Annual Report 2009 ==& & 1, F£F 3

97



98
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(B=EHTESN  AARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

9  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 WHHNE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIBFB D AEHIE 161 IFFTIRENES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ST -
Basic
salaries,
housing
allowances
and other
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement
EXES scheme
Directors’ EE2E  Discretionary contributions 2009
fees Hin2R bonuses B Total
EEHS EMER MEEAL BE 5 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT ARBTR
Chairman FE
Mr Yunshu ZENG SEEEE 1,200 - - 21 1,221
Executive directors HITEE
Mr Yijun ZHANG REHRAE 116 - - 2 118
(appointed on (FA2009%12 A 228
22 December 2009) BZM)
Mr Yiyan ZHANG REA A 1,040 = - = 1,040
Mr Sheng ZENG LHLE 1,040 = - 21 1,061
Ms Qingdong YE EERLT 480 = - 21 501
Mr Junxin OUYANG BB RaEE 240 - - 14 254
Dr Qinchun HAN (note) gxEET () 1,040 - - 1 1,051
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive directors
DrJun LI FHEEL 132 - - - 132
Mr Ngai Lam CHEUNG REMEA 132 - - - 132
Mr Fosong WANG FHEAE 132 - - - 132
5,552 - - 90 5,642

Note: Dr. Qinchun HAN has resigned as an executive director of the

Company on 19 January 2010.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1= SR AT
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

9

o (A)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Cont'd)

Chairman
Mr Yunshu ZENG

Executive directors
Mr Yiyan ZHANG

(appointed on

6 October 2008)
Mr Sheng ZENG
Ms Qingdong YE
Mr Junxin OUYANG
Dr Qinchun HAN

Non-executive directors
Mr Huagiao ZHANG
(resigned on
26 September 2008)

Independent non-
executive directors
DrdunlLl
Mr Ngai Lam CHEUNG
Mr Fosong WANG
(appointed on
6 October 2008)
Ms Wei Fang LIN
(resigned on
6 October 2008)

EY
BEELE

HiTEE

REA K4
(72200810468
BERA)

B

E¥ERLT

BUS &R E

BEEET

P

FBEE
(B 200859 A 26 B
HT)

BUFHTEE

ZREEL

REMEAE

THiMEE
(72200810468
BERA)

WLt
(B 2008510 A6 H
EHT)

Basic
salaries,
housing

allowances
and other
allowances
and benefits

RBERERFEDIZE 161 RFIRENES

BemT - (&)

in kind Retirement

BEXE scheme
Directors' EE=2B - Discretionary  contributions 2008
fees H)= 2 bonuses IR Total
EES EWiEA EEA REESA @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFTL AREFT AREFT
1,500 - - 21 1,621
325 - - - 325
1,300 - - 20 1,320
600 - - 20 620
300 - - 15 315
1,300 - - i 1,311
133 - - - 133
133 - - - 133
30 - - - 30
100 - - - 100
5,721 - - 87 5,808
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(B=EHTESN  AARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

10

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

B e e A\

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, four of
the five individuals with the highest emoluments are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual is as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments e RHEMHE
Discretionary bonuses BITEfEAL

Retirement scheme contributions RIRGETEIE R

The emoluments of the individual with the highest emolument is
within the following band:

Tz AR 1,000,000 7T
AK#1,000,001 T2
AR ¥ 1,500,000 7T

Nil to RMB 1,000,000
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no
emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors, senior
executives or any of the five highest individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1= SR AT
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EZE20094F % 2008512 A31HIEFE
hEGEaMeALtzH  EEERES -
HMESRMEOHE - Hep—ZnBE
BT

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
761 1,067

1 11

772 1,078

HEtp—EZememm AT e HE M
T

Number of individuals
EEHE
2009 2008

&%= 20094 % 20084 12 A 31 B 1L (&
FEA AEEHERNESR  SRTH
A B AT T 4 x5 B A9 A o S AT
T ERTSIEREMARKE IR IMA
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 11 A B HE RS B o A w5 A1)
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB32,579,000 (2008: profit
of RMB27,524,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

AAREmRREEGRARENBEAR
32,579,000 T # E518 (20085F : Ja Kl A
R#27,624,0007T) ' ZBEERAATA
R TSR PR IE o

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit for the

ARBRAFERNZBNE LIRS 2

year: FEMOT -
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Amount of consolidated profit attributable SR BB B 5 2k
to equity shareholders dealt with in the BRIR R R E AR R PR (R 4R
Company's financial statements BRAE SRR (32,579) 27,524
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable REEANDBERZH
to the profits of prior financial years, BB R (R s A A
approved and paid during the year S EPNGIE RSN 261,200 =
Company'’s profit for the year (note 30(a)) IR B ANF E i A (i 5E 30(a)) 228,621 27,524
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 &REF]
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRERER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the i & & ﬁj‘Lﬁ & A $
ERAAR#EZRREMNS

profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB32,699,000 (2008: RMB3,546,000) and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year of
1,040,250,000 (2008: 1,040,250,000).

=

| A B #232,699,0007T (2008
F: A R ¥3,546,0007T ) © K
BERAEERNE BTG A N
FH5%1,040,250,000 % (20084 :
1,040,250,000 %) 5+ & -

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 R AR A 101
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B-SEH#S) » LU RETSHT)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D) 12 ®RER (4)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BEBREBEBERR
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the SRETRMDIRBEARDREER

B 3% A A R 32,699,000 7T
(20084 : AR¥3,546,0007T) K&
% 17 hn e SF 15 £ 1,043,984,000 %
(20084 : 1,048,475,000 % ) &t

profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB32,699,000 (2008: RMB3,546,000) and the weighted
average number of shares of 1,043,984,000 (2008:

1,048,475,000) shares, calculated as follows: g EEmT
Weighted average number of shares (diluted) PR IIEF 1% (#5E)
2009 2008
‘000 ‘000
T T
Weighted average number 1 A1 BB a9 L
of shares at 1 January 1,040,250 1,040,250
Deemed issue of ordinary shares AR BARIR R ST 2
under share option scheme for EEETTBR
nil consideration 3,734 8,225
Weighted average number of ® 12 A 31 BHRR 5 IntE
shares (diluted) at 31 December T8 (EE) 1,043,984 1,048,475
For the Warrants granted in prior years (note 23(b)), there MBEFER T ARIEE (T
was no dilutive effect on earnings per share upon deemed 23(b)) ME ' MR AITEEZ I
exercise. HERBANEFHELE -
13  SEGMENT REPORTING 13 4rEpdEeh
The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are AEBRRBEXEBES (MERERYE
organised by a mixture of business lines (property leasing and FRE) BN 2o EEBEER - NERIK
property development). On first-time adoption of HKFRS 8, MBS R EXERE 8 SRALE 7 5 -
Operating segments and in a manner consistent with the way in AEBZBEARAANEB SRR ETHE
which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior BAEREANREREE RTHRRZ
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and AEBE R ER 2 = - T REA
performance assessment, the Group has identified the following WEDE - AEBUWES HLEED I -
two reportable segments. No operating segments have been LAZRRK T 5783 S 58 ©

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 12 SR A T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH55) » A RBTITR)

13  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D)

13 srif#e s (A1)

(a)

Property leasing: this segment leases retail properties to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in
the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group's
entire investment property portfolio is located in the PRC.

Property development: this segment develops and sells
office premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all
the Group's property development activities are carried out in
the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management, which has been identified as the
board, monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets
with the exception of trading securities, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all
trade and other payables, accruals, receipts in advance and
rental and other deposits.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the
segment results, adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other corporate administration costs.

- DEAE: ASHEETEWEIA
BREVE 2 WA FER K B ETHE
Wz - M AEEZ REWMEAS
BRI

- MERE  AOBRABRHEES
g EERTEYE- ﬁ%$%@
ZHEYMERBERORNF RE
1T o

(a) 2#HEE BEEREE

STl D MRELE D BEERE

BEME  AEEZSETHRERA
BEEESRERATRELEE R

ERENMEE BENEE

DEEEBREMBRBRIERBE
E(REERS  BRENBEEER
HirEEEN) - DA BBEBRE
D EEEEH A AR R
Hi AR - BIREA - BUERER
REERHEMBSE -

W kR 2RO IMEE ZHE

REIZ SR 5 HAE 2 & E A E S
BHTELE  PEZRARES
# -

KRG “*Mﬁ%‘JZi’%ﬂ'Ei/’%
FERAR - WRLRARERNER S
M2EB (MESERREMM R
LA ZEITIRAA) (R 2 -

‘pﬂ; okt DLP EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B-SEH#S) » LU RETSHT)

13  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D) 13 Zr#bdss (4)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (a) BEE EEREE(E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as MAEERSETREREABRE
provided to the Group's most senior executive management & = 20094 K% 20084 12 A31H
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of IEFERERRE kD SR
segment performance for the year ended 31 December 2009 MRS EERE D IR E RS0
and 2008 is set out below. e

Property leasing Property development Total
MERE LIS st
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARETE

Revenue from PREEBA

external customers 73,009 55,481 289,360 64,147 362,369 119,628
Net increase in fair value REMENARE

of investment properties by ek 56,830 62,120 - - 56,830 62,120
Depreciation and amortisation 175 K #4 (386) (500) (2,247) (2,068) (2,633) (2,568)
Reportable segment profit ~ ERE2EEA 108,056 97,657 14,464 5,148 122,520 102,805
Additions to non-current AEEARE

segment assets during ERBAHEE

the year 112 536 502,127 729,222 502,239 729,758

Reportable segment assets ~ EREHBEE 1444714 1324539 2,674,657 2,280,536 4,119,371 3,605,075

Reportable segment liabilities B#}&4HEE 64,971 48,248 361,896 405,960 426,866 454,208

104 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1= SR AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 HH#55) » A RETITR)

13  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D)

13

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

Profit
Reportable segment profit
Other revenue and net income
Depreciation and amortisation
Corporate finance costs
Net change in fair value of

derivative financial instruments
Equity-settled share-based payments
Other corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before taxation

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Trading securities

Deferred tax assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Taxation payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

A

RS D R A
HADWA R o 2R
e e 5
REREKAR
TESRTANAAEDN

PR AEE AR D A ERE RO 3K
HA 2R

BriATAR A A

=
BIREDHEE
BEERS
REFRIEEA E
REEDEMDEEE

IRERARE

#HW

t

ERERIARER
REED MR EEE

memaE

(b)

gy ¥ i i (%9)
AREIMER  EEREEN
FE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR®BFT
122,520 102,805
96,035 92,588
(121) (340)
(87,843) (90,227)
(19,994) 58,633
- (15,717)
(45,893) (57,046)
64,704 90,596
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR®BFT
4,119,371 3,605,075
4,519 967
49,947 38,249
382,853 180,019
4,556,690 3,824,310
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBFT
426,866 454,208
262,552 245,652
231,634 209,207
1,914,801 1,255,440
2,835,853 2,164,507
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W3 - W= B
The Group
A5E
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
#EEA  improvements HE £E vehicles Total
BF HEEE & AE @t
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2009 #2009F1A1H 3,470 4,253 3,821 9,345 20,889
Additions NE - - 623 1,029 1,652
Disposals T - - (923) (1,340) (2,263)
At 31 December 2009 R2009612A31B 3470 4283 3521 9034 20,278
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 January 2009 #2009F1A1H (1,085) (2,371) (1,984) (4,396) (9,836)
Charge for the year REEHE (193) (275) (614) (1,294) (2,376)
Written back on disposal & R R - - 923 932 1,855
At 31 December 2009 #2009F 12 A31H | !'l_,??g) ________ (_2_,@4_-6_) ________ ( :I,_6_7_5! o _(@,:IE_'@)_ o !1_0_,3_’5_7_)_ i
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2009 F2009%12 A31H 2,192 1,607 1,846 4,276 9,921




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

(

(&

EEAIEIN » UAARETTIT)

14 W3 ~ W st ()

Cost:

At 1 January 2008
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2008
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 31 December 2008

Net book value:

At 31 December 2008

B :

720081818
WEEHB A RES
AE
HE

72008412 B31H
2EHE
120081818
WEEHB A RES

TERFE
HERRD

720084 12 B31H

BREFE

720084 12 A31H

The Group
AEE
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
H{EEA  improvements BE - KB vehicles Total
BF HEXE e e st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT
3470 3,852 3,448 6,335 17,105
- - 42 1,096 1,138
- 401 331 2,103 2,835
- = - (189) (189)
I A0 A8 88 . 9346 . 20,889
(910) (1,780) (1,345) (3,298) (7,333)
= = (3) (67) (70)
(175) (591) (636) (1,142) (2,544)
- - - 11 111
... oes) @237 . (1984) _____(43%) _______ (9836 _
2,385 1,882 1,837 4,949 11,053

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 R AR A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 14 ¥ - Bkt (8)
The Company
KA
Leasehold
improvements
HEHE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2008 and 200841 H1H
at 31 December 2008 K% 20084 12 A31H B30
At 1 January 2009 R2009F1H1H 530
Additions nE 5
At 31 December 2009 7420094128311 535
Accumulated depreciation: H2ETIHE
At 1 January 2008 7R 2008F 1 A1 H (63)
Charge for the year AEEHE (337)
At 31 December 2008 mM2008%12A318 (400)
At 1 January 2009 R 2009F1H1H (400)
Charge for the year REEE (110)
At 31 December 2009 #M2009%128318 (510)
Net book value: BREFHE :
At 31 December 2009 7 2009F12H31H 25
At 31 December 2008 7R 2008F 12 A31H 130

108 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 J7> B 2 W) R 25
The Company
PN
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Unlisted investments, at cost IEETIRE © TR 80,082 80,082
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A RIFIE 1,113,434 1,007,534
Less: impairment losses on amounts B FEU B A RIFE

due from subsidiaries HIRLEE 1B (561) (561)
1,192,955 1,087,055

Except for an amount of RMB283,551,000 (2008: RMB265,236,000)
which is interest-bearing at the 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate
as determined from time to time by the People's Bank of China
per annum, the balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free, and repayable on demand. These balances are expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

B —% AR # 283,551,000t (2008 5 :
AR # 265,236,000 7T ) SRIEIZF R AR
RTEFIREEN —FHAREER
EEFEFT B - BB A RM AR
EIER 2R RERERER S
BRIBHIR —FRUKE -

TREHINIZZEAEEEE  BE
REBENHEBARNFRS - 5485 %
S PR AR BRI RS B A

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEpE#ZR AR A T
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(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’ D)

15 B 2 w] R 2 (%)

Percentage
Place of Issued/ of equity

Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up attributable Principal Legal

company establishment operation capital to the Company activities form

NG HMRL RIS SE I B#T/BHER ARAREMEEZASE  EEBEK EERR

Direct Indirect
HE CifF3
% %

Access BVI Shenzhen, US$10,000 100 - Investment Private
Achievement RBEZHES the PRC 10,0003 7T holding limited
Limited FELRI REER liability

company
A
BRAT

Hong Long Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB299,000,000 - 100 Property Wholly
Property the PRC the PRC AR 299,000,000 7T develop- foreign-
Group BRI hEEY| ment and owned
Company property enter-
Limited investment prise
(formerly MR IHNEEE
known as ROERE &%
Hong Long
Properties
(Shenzhen)

Company
Limited)

I EEE
BRAE (RITE
weREsE ORI
BRATF)

Shenzhen Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB28,000,000 - 100 Property Limited
Yinghua the PRC the PRC AR 28,000,0007C (Note a) develop- liability
Development LRI A B (FizEa) ment company
Company MR BRRE
Limited

RIEEE S
ZREBERAA

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(&=

BFHHESN  AANERTTITR)

15 B 2 w] B9 RS (%)

Name of
company

AR EH

Huizhou
Yintaida
Company
Limited

BMmREE
BEXARAR

Shenzhen
Hong Long
Commercial
Management
Company
Limited

R ITBE R %
BEARAT

Zhangjiakou
Centre Way
Real Estate
Development
Company
Limited

REAHE
iR
BRAT

Meizhou
Hong Long
Shi Ye
Company
Limited

RS
BRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

TEMASL B3

Huizhou,
the PRC
BTN

Shenzhen,
the PRC
FELRI

Hebei,
the PRC
FEI L

Meizhou,
the PRC
BN

Place of
operation
S 2

Huizhou,
the PRC
BN

Shenzhen,
the PRC
BRI

Hebei,
the PRC
FEDIT L

Meizhou,
the PRC
BN

Issued/
paid up
capital

BR{T/EHEX

RMB20,000,000
AR 20,000,000

RMB10,680,000
AK#10,680,0007C

HK$20,000,000
20,000,000/87T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007C

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
AAREEERAD L
Direct Indirect
HiZ B
% %
- 82
(Note b)
(FizED)
- 100
- 100
- 100

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A &

Principal
activities

TREHR

Property

develop-

ment

ESE

Property
leasing

and sub-

leasing
MEBRE
PELE

Property

develop-

ment

ESE

Property

develop-

ment

ESE

Legal
form

EEFR

Limited
liability
company

BRRTE

Limited
liability
company

BRRTE

Wholly
foreign-
owned
enter-
prise

HNEEE
i3

Limited
liability
company

BRRTE

111
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BSEH#S) » LA RETSHT)

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’ D)

15 B 2 w] R 2 (%)

Place of Issued/
Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up
company establishment operation capital
NG HMRL RIS SE I BET/BHER
Xingning Meizhou, Meizhou, RMB230,000,000
Hong Long the PRC the PRC AR 230,000,000 7T
Property BN LN
Development
Company
Limited
EEESE
BRAT
Shenzhen City Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB21,000,000
Zirui Real the PRC the PRC AR 21,000,0007C
Estate BRI FELRSI
Development
Company
Limited
RITERE
BRI
BRAT
Notes:
(a) The percentage of equity attributable to the Company increased from
86% to 100% in November 2009.
(b) The percentage of equity attributable to the Company decreased from

100% to 82% in March 2009.

112 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Percentage

of equity

attributable Principal Legal
to the Company activities form

FARENEZ AL EEER EERR
Direct Indirect

B i
% %

- 100 Property Wholly
develop- foreign-
ment owned

MR enter-
prise

SNEEE
B%

- 100 Property Limited
develop- liability
ment company

VELEE ARAT
P&t

(a) AAAIEE#ERA DR 200911 A
F186% 1% 100% °

(b)  ARFEEERB DR 2009F 3 AR
100% &2 82% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 #EW*

At 1 January m1A1R
Net increase in fair value R EE IR
At 31 December W12 A31H

(a)

(b)

(c)

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
December 2009 by an independent firm of surveyors, Knight
Frank Petty Limited, who has among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued, on an
open market value basis calculated by reference to the net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The analysis of fair value of investment properties is as
follows:

In PRC, held on leases of
—over 50 years
— between 10 and 50 years

— BB 50 F
—105F&E50%F

Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31
December 2009.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment properties.

(a)

(b)

B - AT SIS RR

(c)

The Group
%

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
1,319,606 1,257,486
56,830 62,120
1,376,436 1,319,606

REEPTA R E YA 20094 12
H31 B E mfEAHRGEEDENL
BEREEAARERNEEREM
BegRe B RESNBEILAEM
TTHRIDBET RN IT AR A RREAR
MISEE2ERS WA FRLF R
AT REHTE R A E LY -

REMENRAREDHUT -

The Group
rEE

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
1,335,416 1,279,916
41,020 39,690
1,376,436 1,319,606

RELEHEHBENRENH

FEERBEEHENEE TRE
M - BEZFHEANSH R/ —
E-TFERRZBRAEEZEME
i & B P B IR R R BT - 10
2009412 A31 8 » ZZHEHT
BEARAEE -

BEMFEREEEEERE XA
EEMTEANERENERTER
BEREEME -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEpE#ZR AR A T
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

16  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 16 HEWE ()

(d)  The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non- (d AEBERBETABBROLCEHESN
cancellable operating leases from investment properties are KEMEEBEERNKERAER
receivable as follows: THAZENT ¢

The Group
REE
2009 2008
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®BTT

Within 1 year —ERK 36,967 36,119

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 125,778 124,817

After 5 years hER 221,061 250,417

383,806 411,353
(e) Asat31 December 2009, certain investment properties of the (e) 720094128318 ' AEBET
Group were pledged against bank loans granted to the Group BEMECERNRAEBIRITER
and details of which are set out in note 24. BB - BAFBEHNMIEE24 ©

17 INVENTORIES 17 H#8&
The Group
AEEH
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Properties for future development and AR PR A 3
under development for sale RERPYIE 1,888,556 1,586,210
Completed properties held for sale REHENE R TY 153,677 16,242
2,042,233 1,602,452
114 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

17 InvENTORIES (CONT’D) 17 #8 (#H)

(@)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in (a)
properties for future development and under development for
sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows:

In PRC, held on leases of FE - RN AAEE
— over 50 years — 838 50 &
— between 10 and 50 years — 105 &E50%F
(b)  The amount of properties for future development and under (b)

development for sale expected to be recovered after more
than one year is analysed as follows:

Properties for future development and HHE R R R FEE
under development for sale RERAYZE

All of the other inventories are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(c) As at 31 December 2009, certain properties for future (c)
development and under development for sale were pledged
against bank loans granted to the Group and details of which
are set out in note 24.

BEERHENRRAERERT
MERFEHENERTYERNK
HELHEREEIHTOT :

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR®EFT

363,441 200,823
4,050 4,141
367,491 204,964

TAHRRE —F AR AT B R A4
ERKRABERERDODENSES

N -
The Group
E3
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT AR®FT

634,945 910,072

FiEHMESERIE - FRE
o

2009412 831 H » ETHHE
B AR 2R 5 2 2 B R R D SE M R R AR
SEERBTERNIERR  #5
BHAHIEE 24 ©

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A & 115
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BSEH#S) » LA RETSHT)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 WAL R a3k S Al JRE Wik
The Group The Company
REE RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTI ARBTRT ARETRT

Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUER R (P 7T (a)) 82,087 10,130 - -
Other receivables H i FEUiR 110,020 96,075 - -
Loans and advances (note (b)) SRR (i () 228,031 89,883 26,359 22,303
Amount due from a related company M —EREEE A RIER
(note (c)) (PitZE (c)) - 30,833 - =
Loans and receivables SR ELGR 420,138 226,921 26,359 22,303
Prepayments and deposits BRFEEZES 277,381 301,565 374 =
Total trade and other receivables R AR E At PR AR 42 5R 697,519 528,486 26,733 22,303
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered F8 B BT A FE Uk BR X N E i FE W R A —
within one year. Frlgm o
(@) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (a) REUERFBSHREKERRREMmE
with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet WHRA - ERNEEABRBHERE
date: DT -
The Group
AHEE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETF T ARKETT

0 to 3 months 0ZE31EA 81,584 9,514
More than 3 months but less HB@E3EA
than 6 months BLR61EA 2 58
More than 6 months but less HBiEe6EA
than 1 year BLR1F 6 8
Over 1 year BiE1F 495 449
82,087 10,130
Trade receivables are due within 3 months from the date of billing. FEURBE R ABE B 2 ) H 12 31 A A &I &R -
No impairment losses on trade recoverable have been provided for REFE KB F 2 E 5 e W BR ZORE
the current and prior years. B IEET IR -
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 31(a). REEKEEBERERHIEE31(a)
116 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 18 R Wi Mk I Al WAk (7))
(b)  Included in loans and advances is an amount of: b) HBFTIATHERERAZG - H
==l
- RMB80,349,000 (2008: RMB89,641,000) made to XBHBEATHERKR

business associates that is secured, interest-bearing
at 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate as determined
from time to time by the People’s Bank of China per
annum, and recoverable within one year.

- RMB40,000,000 (2008: Nil) made to business
associates that is secured, interest-bearing at 1-3 year
RMB benchmark lending rate as determined from time
to time by the People’s Bank of China per annum, and
recoverable within one year.

- RMB100,000,000 (2008: Nil) made to a related
company, in which certain directors of such company
are directors of the Group. The balance is secured,
interest-bearing at 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate
as determined from time to time by the People’s Bank
of China per annum, and recoverable within one year.

= B A R 80,349,000
L (2008 : A R *
89,641,0007t ) * A A &
- EZPBRARBITEED
RNETHN —FHAREER
EEFRRFE - WAIR—F
Al E -

EBBHEAITHNERER
= A A R #40,000,000 7T
(20084 : &) - BEHEA -
RAEBRARBITEFENRE
EH—Z2=FHAREER
EERRFE - WAIR—F
Al [E -

—BEARNERRBK
%A A R 100,000,000 7T
(20084 : &)  HAZAR]
NETESAEAEEES -
ZEHBBER  ZPBEA
RBITEETEHETH —F
AR EREEF =5
B WAR—FAKE -

(c)  The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (c) HKHAEERF - REREBERENRE
demand. 2o
19 PREPAID LAND COSTS 19 FEAF AR
Prepaid land costs are for leasehold land held on long leases in the TEAT + 3B AN Th 38 K B R Bl R R BAFE 49
PRC. FANEE LM -
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A & 117
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

20 TRADING SECURITIES 20 HE#EH
The Group
REE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®BTT

Listed equity securities, outside Hong Kong EBERIN ETHRE (ETE)

(at market value) 502 240
Unlisted fund (note) IF EE S (Fizh) 4,017 727
4,519 967
Note: The amount is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy WIsE : ZEBBEARM KRN 2(d) FrEime
set out in note 2(d) to these financial statements. S E TR o
21  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 91 fikk4EmT H

The Group and The Company

AEERAAT
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARKETT

Derivative financial liabilities (note 25) TS RE E (H1525)
Warrants (note 23(b)) RRHERE (Pi7E 23b) 30,252 10,402
The fair value of Warrants is determined by an independent valuer, RREZBN R BEHRBEL(HEMEET
Asset Appraisal Limited, using the Black-Scholes financial model. BEEERATKABENT —FRATH
EIRAIETE -

The assumptions applied in determining the fair values of derivative REEMESRIT AN AR ERERAN
financial instruments are set out as follows: FREEH ST :
Fair value of warrants and assumptions PRRIEFZ R 2 A B R ARAR

2009 2008
Fair value at measurement date TEEHNARE HK$0.4249 8t HK$0.1452 87T
Share price & (& HK$1.0578 7T HK$0.375/87T
Exercise price TEE HK$1.68 87T  HKS$1.68/E7T
Expected volatility LY 89% 98%
Expected dividends TEHARR B 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ B 1 2 0.98% 1.05%
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

22  PLEDGED DEPOSITS

29 HLIGEK

23

(a) Included in pledged deposits of the Group as at 31 December
2009 were:

- Deposits of RMB10,979,000 (2008: RMB4,489,000)
pledged with certain banks as guarantee deposits for
the benefit of mortgage loan facilities granted by the
banks to purchasers of the Group's properties.

- Deposits totalling RMB61,056,000 (2008: Nil) pledged
for purchase consideration payable to a former equity
holder of a subsidiary. The pledge has been released
subsequent to the year end in February 2010.

- Deposits totalling RMB924,000 (2008: RMB49,849,000)
pledged with banks securing the Group’s bank and other
borrowings as set out in note 24.

- Deposits totalling RMB610,000 (2008: RMB508,000)
pledged for the payment to a construction contractor as
retention monies.

As at 31 December 2008, deposits totalling RMB5,000,000
were pledged for the bills payable. The pledge was released
during the year upon settlement of bills.

(b)  Included in pledged deposits of the Company as at 31
December 2008 were deposits totalling RMB31,849,000 for
bank loans granted to subsidiaries (note 24).

NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

(a) 72009412831 H @ AEBEEME
FREHE:

/4 AR #10,979,0007T
(20084 : AR™4,489,000
) ZEBRENAETRE
IRTAEEMEE HHE
BERBEEARERSE
AZEIRAT o

BLIEAT T MY B A 5 — & A #E
A A ZEE R E K
S HARG1,056,000 TTiF
/(2008 F : &) - ZIKIFE
RELEBEN2010F2 B
AR ©

H—EFHR KT E24 M ERIT R
HMEEmMERTRITEH
A A R ¥924 0007t (2008
& AR¥49,849,0007T) K
B e

M—FEREEABBEIMNN
HEMEREEAEARE
610,000 (20084F : A R
# 508,000 7T ) K917 5K+ BAYE
BRI -

P 20084 12 A 31 H * St EE
i # & £ A R # 5,000,000 7T 77
Ko RERNAFENBEERER
TERRER -

(b)  M2008%F12A31H AR &K
WERF EER RN E QAR
WIBTTERMEFREELAARE
31,849,000 st Kk (st 24) °

23 JFERPIIAE

&

The analysis of the carrying amount of non-current borrowings is as
follows:

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
— secured (note 24) — B (i 24)
Senior Note (note (b)) BEERE (D)

FEENEE R Z REESMTAT

The Group
AEE
2009 2008

RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETE

1,211,177 180,000
182,657 519,725

The Company
/N
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR®TT

110,500 =
182,657 SIISNZS

1,393,834 699,725

293,157 SilONIZ5

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEpE#ZR AR A T
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(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

23  NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

23 JERIHIAE £ (A

(a)

(b)

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried
at amortised cost.

Senior Note

Pursuant to the offering memorandum of the Company
dated 20 September 2007 (“Offering Memorandum”), the
Company issued 900 units of senior note (collectively referred
to as the “Senior Note”) and 81,000,000 nil-paid warrants (the
“Warrants”) for a principal amount totalling US$90,000,000.
The Senior Note was interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum at
issue and interests were payable semi-annually in arrears, and
will mature on 3 October 2012. Detachable from the Senior
Note, each Warrant may be exercised from the date of issue
up to 2 October 2012 at an initial exercise price, subject to
certain conditions of reset and adjustment, of HK$3.36 per
ordinary share of the Company.

Pursuant to a cross-currency and interest rate swap
agreement (the “swap agreement”) entered into between
the Company and a financial institution immediately after
the Offering Memorandum, the notional principal amount
of the Senior Note under the swap agreement deemed to
be effective at the date of issue was RMB676,845,000,
whereas the notional interest rate applicable to the Senior
Note was the 1-year RMB benchmark deposit rate as
determined from time to time by the People’'s Bank of
China plus 5.3% per annum. On 10 October 2008, the swap
agreement was terminated and US$4,100,000 (equivalent
to RMB27,994,000) was received as compensation.
Subsequent to the termination of the swap agreement, the
principal of the Senior Note became US$90,000,000, and
interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum.

As a condition stated in the Offering Memorandum, the
Company is granted a redemption option such that at any time
on or after 3 October 2010, the Company may redeem the
Senior Note, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal
to the percentage ranging from 100% to 106.25% of the
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date. At any time prior to 3 October 2010, the
Company may redeem the Senior Note, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the Senior Note plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. In addition, at
any time prior to 3 October 2010, the Company may redeem up
to 35% of the aggregate principal amount with proceeds from
certain sales of the Company’s equity shares, at a redemption
price equal to 112.5% of the principal amount, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date.
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BIBEER |) X 81,000,000 5 AK4%
R s ([RREE]) - NeHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

23  NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

23 JERIHIAE £ (A

(b)

Senior Note (Cont’d)

The Senior Note is general obligations of the Company
and is senior in right of payment to any existing and future
obligations of the Company expressly subordinated in right
of payment to the Senior Note, which is at least pari passu
in right of payment with all other unsecured, unsubordinated
indebtedness of the Company (subject to any priority rights
of such unsubordinated indebtedness pursuant to applicable
laws). The Senior Note holder(s) are entitled to a first
priority security interest on certain collateral charged by the
Company, and the Senior Note ranks effectively senior in right
of payment to unsecured obligations of the Company with
respect to the value of the collateral charged by the Company.

As at 31 December 2009, Senior Note can be analysed into
the following components:

(i) Liability component for the Senior Note represents the
present value of the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest
determined by the market instruments of comparable
credit status taken into account the business risk of
the Company as well as the large amount of the Senior
Note, but without the conversion option. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 17.80%
(2008: 19.07%) per annum.

(i) Warrant represents the fair value of the right to
subscribe for the Company’'s equity shares at
applicable exercise price.

(b)

BRRE (&)

BEARBRARARN—MREME X
NHER 78 @ ER AR R E PR

RARREN B ERE X R ER
RERARKREME  WESNESE
ELEARRNBNNA M EERIE
REEEF A RS (ZZIER
BRERBEREENEAELE

HR) - BERBRBABEESL

FHEARBGE T HM R HE

AmAE - MEAR T URE A R
mEEME @ BERBERXNES
EHER EEENARRNEETE
£ -

R20094%12 A31 H » BEEHEA
DI AEA TS

(i) EBEZEBENEEBIEZY
EBENRFBESRERRN
BE MARRESHEHL
BT R ANA B R FE T B R R K
ARENELEZR(ETES
MEARE) - ROk BREEMR
SRE T 5 TR E R FIRIT
We BEMBDNERF =
& & F17.80% (20084 :
19.07%) °

(i) REEFEVIZERITEE
REARRROBOENO R
SfE e
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

23 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 23 JEBIHIfE & (4)
(b)  Senior Note (Cont'd) (b) {EEZIE(E)
The movement of different components of the Senior Note BAZBETEBIREANRE B
during the year is set out below: FEAR -
Redemption
Liability Warrants option Total
af AREE  BERER Foh

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR

(note 21)
(M21)
At 1 January 2008 R2008%1A18 555,708 74,541 (1,400) 628,849
Transaction costs amortised [BE: £ 0TI 23,985 = = 23,985
Exchange differences ERZEE (59,968) (4,292) 86 (64,174)
Net (increase)/decrease DREGEM),/
in fair value D FE - (59,847) 1,314 (58,533)

At 31 December 2008 2008412 A31 8 519,725 10,402 - 530,127
At 1 January 2009 M2009F181H 519,725 10,402 - 530,127
Repurchases B[ (363,713) - - (363,713)
Transaction costs amortised BEERS AR 20,353 - - 20,353
Exchange differences EXER 6,292 (144) - 6,148
Net change in fair value AREFELE - 19,994 - 19,994
At 31 December 2009 #2009 12 A31H 182,657 30,252 - 212,909
The fair value of the liability component of the Senior Note M 2009412 A31 H » BAZEN
is not materially different from its carrying value as at 31 BEBSH AL EEEREEE
December 2009. BEAER
During the year, the Company has made the following KEENRN  AARMEBEZED#E
transactions regarding the Senior Note: TOTRS :
= on-market repurchases of 90 units of the Senior Note - 7N A R E 35 A B B 90 1A

of a principal amount of US$9,000,000, and; BNEBEZER XE&8A

9,000,000%7T * &

= open tender to repurchase 510 units of the Senior Note - NHZE L E EL10E B

of a principal amount of US$51,000,000. NEXER X8R

51,000,000 3T °
1122 Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

23  NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 23  FEEVHIfE & (5)

(b)  Senior Note (Cont’d) (b)

Aggregate gain net of related expenses resulted from
the above transactions were RMB73,128,000 (2008: Nil).
Subsequent to the completion of the repurchases, these 600
units of the Senior Note have been cancelled.

Subsequent to the completion of the open tender, the
requirement to meet the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and
the Leverage Ratio as set out under the indenture governing
the Senior Note, dated as of 3 October 2007, among the
Company, Access Achievement Limited as initial subsidiary
guarantor and Citibank, N.A., London Branch as trustee has

BRARE (F)

iR B EANAWZ(FIKHA
BRI ) A ARK73128,0007T
(20084 : ) - NEE[EI TR £
Z% 600 ABEMEBELEEED N -

AHABHEXE AAREE
% B E A QA Access
Achievement Limited ({fE&%]
G B AR ERA) KCitibank,
NAGBEHIT(HEABETA)R
200710 A3 BRI HEE@EE

been waived. ERCEATHETERBEEZEE
LE = AIER L E AR E o
24  BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 SRAT R H Al AE B
At 31 December 2009, the bank and other borrowings were secured R2009F 12 A31H » RITREMEEN
as follows: WHOT -
The Group The Company
EE VNG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®Tr ARETx
Secured BHEA 1,514,977 650,124 110,500 -
Unsecured AR AR 72,000 40,000 - =
1,586,977 690,124 110,500 —
At 31 December 2009, the bank and other borrowings were M2009412 A31 0  EEENRITRE
repayable as follows: HEERT :
The Group The Company
EE ZAUNE|
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®Tr ARETT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRARNEREEER 375800 510,124 - -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFER 675,177 30,800 110,500 =
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 194,400 149,200 - =
After 5 years RFR 341,600 = - =
1,211,177 180,000 110,500 -

1,586,977 690,124 110,500 -

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 R AR A 123
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24  BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(B=EHTESN - AARETIT)

24  SRAT R ILAAE £ (B)

At 31 December 2009, assets of the Group secured against bank
loans are analysed as follows:

Properties for future development HH SRR RFE K
and under development for sale =G ES

Investment properties KEYZE

Pledged deposits HEIRFR

As at 31 December 2009, included in the Group's bank and other
borrowings of RMB200,000,000 were bank loans drawn down by a
subsidiary and pledged by the ordinary shares of the Company held
by the Company's ultimate holding company. The pledge is more
senior than that of the following credit note.

As at 31 December 2009, credit note of US$26,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB177,541,000) were pledged by the ordinary shares of the
Company held by the Company’s ultimate holding company.

As at 31 December 2008, included in the Group's bank and other
borrowings of RMB30,000,000 were bank loans drawn down by
subsidiaries and pledged by the Company’s pledged deposits of
RMB31,849,000.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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R2009%12 A31H - BEIEAEITER
EHNANEBEEZHMAT ¢

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®BTT

643,778 194,136
1,264,000 1,212,000
924 49,849
1,908,702 1,455,985

72009412 A31H - AEERTRHAM
B8 AR 200,000,000 7T 2 1 T 2 &)
RREBHARABAKKERARRFAHA
REE BB A RITER - ZEMR
TIMEERBMARS -

72009412 B31 A » {58 226,000,000
E1 (BER AR 177,541,0007T) M
ARRRBERARFENARRLE
A& AEHAF o

72008412 A31H » AEERTRHAM
& & AR # 30,000,000 7t B8 15 Kt B A &
REEAARRERERERORTE
AR 31,849,000 7T °



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » A ERETIR)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS 25 FEATRRZK ~ I RE AF ak M TE IR
The Group The Company
REE ARAE
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETT
Bills payable (note (a)) AR (M3 (@) - 5,000 - -
Trade payables (note (a)) FETBRFR (HY3E (a) 33,306 36,493 - -
Amount due to a director (note (b)) R —BESIE (M3 b)) 777 537 - -
Amount due to a subsidiary (note (b)) FEFT—RIFIE A B1R0E (FiEE (b)) - - 240 109
Derivative financial instruments (note 21)  $T4& 8 T A (FiFE21) 30,252 10,402 30,252 10,402
Other creditors and HAERR
accrued charges (note (c)) RERER (3 () 413,698 350,144 111,562 27,599
478,033 402,576 142,054 38,110
Notes: B3
(a) Included in trade and other payables, and accruals are trade and bills (a) REEBEBRB  BANERRREMES
payables with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet HETEREABEENERREMNE
date: B BERESTHT :
The Group
REE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARET T
Due within 3 months or on demand 3E A AR Bz E 5k 33,306 41,493
() The amounts due to a director and a subsidiary are unsecured, (b) ENEEKMEBARREAEEKR %
interest-free and repayable on demand. B RIEEREE -
(c) Included in other creditors and accrued charges are: (c) HiENREEREARRE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

an upfront fee payable ofHK$76,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB66,886,000) (2008: Nil) for a credit note of the Company.
Subsequent to the year end, the entire amount has been
settled by the issuance of ordinary shares of the Company as
set out in note 30(c)(iv).

a short-term advance with principal amount of US$2,200,000
(equivalent to RMB 15,021,000) (2008: Nil) received during the
year. Subsequent to the year end, the entire amount has been
settled by the issuance of ordinary shares of the Company as
set out in note 30(c)(v).

an one-year advance of RMB30,000,000 (2008: Nil) obtained
by the Group from an independent third party during the year,
which is interest-bearing at 6% per annum. The advance
is secured by certain units of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with a carrying value of approximately
RMB16,963,000.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FRARARBNEERREMND
S2B1%E A 76,000,000 7% 7t (A E
AR % 66,886,0007T) (2008
FoE) NFEHERAK 282
BARITARA R L BARLEE (0
B 5E 30(c)(iv) k) ©

F N IRER B A & %8 42,200,000
= (HE N AR 15,021,000
7t) (2008 4F : £ ) MG HAZASK -
REZBE  2HSBUABITA
AR BARAEE (KT EE30(c)(v)
Frl) ©

FAREBER—BUE=HES
B —FHIR A K% 30,000,000
JC(20084F : &)  1REBF 6% &t
B ZBRUASEETHHE
HBEEPYEBEMEREAEOAR
# 16,963,000 JTIEHE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(B=EHTESN  AARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

26

FER

27

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties and
prepaid rental from tenants of the Group’s investment properties.
Included in receipts in advance were RMB15,271,000 (2008: Nil)
which are expected to be settled after more than one year. All other
receipts in advance are expected to be settled within one year.

RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS

27

BUERREANEEGBEMERES
WEHEEMSRARERNEEBRE Y
MAEFKEMBMES - BRERZP A
R# 15,271,000 7t (2008 4F : ##) FBH
—FREHE - 1A EMTERERRTEHRER
—FREH -

M KA 246

28

Included in rental and other deposits were RMB8,604,000 (2008:
RMB8,741,000) which are expected to be settled after more than
one year. All other rental and other deposits are expected to be
settled within one year.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

28

HEREMEBESTEFE —EHEHN —
FlREEABARYS, 604,000 THFIE
(20084 : AR¥8,741,0007T) ° FTEH
S R EMIES BN —FRERER -

Ar B A H R AR Y RY B A A

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
represents:

PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI 2SR

Provision for the year ANEF[TAE

Provisional tax paid BT E&HIE

Balance of tax provision relating BREABEFENTIE
to prior years A A

Taxation payable FERIRIE

Land Appreciation Tax T IBERE

Provision for the year NG A

Provisional tax paid BRI 2

Balance of tax provision relating BREABEFENTIE
to prior years A A

Taxation payable FERIRIIE

Total =

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1= SR AT
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(a) HEEESB/ROARMBLIES :

The Group
E3

2009 2008

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBFT

19,657 16,059

(1,202) -

67,990 57,321
I 86,445 | 73,380 __

6,683 328

(2,173) -

171,597 171,944
I 176,107 . 172,272

262,552 245,652




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 BA#55) » A RETIR)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 98 A EEABENNKER
(Cont’D) (%)
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EZESIE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised RirAEERABRANERNELT
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during H(RE)/BEHS RENESHIN
the year are as follows: T
Depreciation ~ Temporary Temporary
allowances  differences differences
inexcess arising from arising from ~ Capitalisation
Revaluation of related deferred  Total deferred Land  ofinterest  Total deferred
of investment  depreciation rent  tax liabilities Appreciation Tax expenses  taxassets
Defrred tax arising from: properties  BHEEREN  BRELAS ELfE FAIMEER BR{ ELE Total
EERERA EfRENE  fERRE  MERER 8EAE  (ENER HEXH BEfE gt

RVB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RNB'000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RVB'000
NS ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTr ARETR ARET ARBTR

At1 January 2008 RA08E1 718 113,864 = = 113,864 (14,74 - (14,744) 9120

Charged/redited) toprofitorloss  #08,/(5t )&% 16530 3903 - 19433 - (13676) (13676) 5767

Effectof changesintaxrateon  HESHHBMET

opening defored taxbalances  FBEERHTE 75910 = - 75910 (9829 - (9,829 66,081

At 31 December 2008 2008E12A318 205,304 3903 - 209,201 (24573) [13,676) (38,249) 170,958

At 1 January 2009 R009E1A1A 205,304 3903 - 209,207 (24573) (13,676) (38,249) 170,958

Charge!cedited] o rofitoross 118/ (3% 14,208 416 4n 24 S mes mes

At 31 December 2009 2009127318 219512 8,049 40n 231,634 (24573) (25,374) (49.947) 181,687
(¢)  The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect () AEBURFBHEBEEARYK

of tax losses of RMB12,100,000 (2008: RMB9,469,000) as 12,100,0007C (20084 : AR

it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available 9,469,000 T ) FERIEE R IE A &= -

against which the losses can be utilised. The tax losses will & 5 7 2R 1S 1] BE HE 1 i RR A vt K1) LA

be expired in 2014 under current tax legislation. EHERE - HEBEBRERTH

THIEAHIR 2014 F 55 -

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 R AR A 127
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BSEH#S) » LA RETSHT)

29  EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 99 DL By B 4k A RLERE ) A5 3k
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January ARAAR 2007 F 1 A 31 BEM—IERRK
2007 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at AR BLLA QR EREREABIE
ey =
their discretion, to invite employees and consultants of the Group, BEASENESRER(BEARER

TEMRARNES) BRBARRRD © %
ERWE-—RERHBHRRAEAZ
—FRER  RURAE+FHEAT

including directors of any company in the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. These options generally vest after six

m-on‘ths to gne ygar from the date of gra‘nt an-d are exercisable & SRREIER TEE AR - A
within a period of five to ten years. Each option gives the holder the TS B IN G5 RRRAE 1075 T 2208 —
right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company at a pre- R AN ] AR o

determined exercise price plus a consideration of HK$10 per option

holder.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (a) FAEFMBEORKIREEDT
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are BUHAERRESGURDETED
settled by physical delivery of shares: AT :

Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
RREHE BERG DRESNFH  OEE
Options granted to directors: KTESHARE
- on 31 January 2007 —1200741A318 7,000,000 Six months from 22 February 2007 5years  HK$0.60
(the “Listing Date") 5% 060
B200762 A 228 (T £MA)
et EA
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 2,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
miRit A B~ E A 10F 184AT
Options granted to employees: & B S HRME
- on 31 January 2007 120074 1A318 12,000,000 Six months from the Listing Date 5years  HK$0.60
H - BstR A EA 5% 06047
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 13,139,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
miRit A EEs RS E A 10F 184AT
- on 10 October 2007 —12007410A10R 1,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$2.99
BRIt A EEE R~ E A 106 2997
Options granted to third parties: &5 = /7 FYRRRRHE :
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 18,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
miRit A AR~ E A 10F 184AT
- on 10 October 2007 —12007€10A 108 20,000,000 One year from the date of grant 10 years  HK$2.99
MR A EEE R —F 10F 2.99%7
- on 13 February 2008 —12008%62A 138 8,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.70
i B EEsHR7~ A A 106 17087
Total At 81,139,000
128 Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

29  EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT D)

29 DAt 7 s SRR RRE A A9 3k ()

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

(b)

AREHE K ENEFITEEN
T

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options

EF IETH
THE  AREHE I RREHE
‘000 ‘000
TR Fi&k

Outstanding at the beginning FMEATE

of the year HK$1.8378 T 81,139  HK$1.91/87T 86,309
Granted during the year FRRH N/ATEA - HK$1.70%7T 8,000
Exercised during the year FRITE N/ATER - N/ATE A =
Cancelled during the year FRFH HK$2.7558 T (25,188) HK$2.28/7C (13,170)
Outstanding at the end of the year A& HAITE HK$1.42 8 7T 55951 HK$1.83/%7T 81,139
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FARRI F1T{E HK$1.4238 T 55951 HK$1.83/87C 81,139

No share options (2008: 8,000,000) were granted during
the year. During the year ended 31 December 2008, equity-
settled share-based payments of RMB15,717,000 regarding
share options granted on 10 October 2007 and 13 February
2008 have been charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under general and administrative
expenses and other operating expenses.

During the year, 5,188,000 (2008: 8,170,000) and 20,000,000
(2008: 5,000,000) share options granted on 15 May 2007
and 10 October 2007 (2008: 15 May 2007 and 10 October
2007) respectively were cancelled. Accordingly, the fair
values on grant date of the share options so cancelled of
RMB17,667,000 (2008: RMB6,926,000) was transferred from
the capital reserve to retained profits.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 and 2008 had
exercise prices of HK$0.60, HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.5 years
(2008: 7.4 years).

AN JE 0 48 3% A (R R AR 4 (2008
4 :8,000,00017 ) * & = 2008 F
12 A31HIEFE B MR 2007410
A10HB & 200842 A 13 HIEXHK
RBEAE 2 LARR 19 75 45 B B R B9 5 3K
AR¥15,717,000cE#ERE B
KA — M RITHE AR E A
BEBPHRE -

% 3 5,188,0001p (2008 £ :
8,170,00017%') 5220,000,00017 (20084 :
5,000,000) 5 B 74 2007 45 A 15
H %2007 410 A 10 H (2008 4F :
2007 F5 A 15H X 20074108
10 8) B2 RIEC WL
It ZEEEHRBRERELAR
HM AR EARK17,667,0007T
(20084 : AR#6,926,0007T)F,
WERFEEREREEF

REZE2009FE 2008412 A31H
LFFE - BB ET(E -

R 20094E 20084 12 A31 Bk
FI{E R IR ERITTE(E /R 0.60/87T -
1.70%7C ~ 1.84%87032.998 T -
MiNEFEEHRTELNFHRLI5F
(2008% : 7.4%) »

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEpE#ZR AR A T
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(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

29  EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D)

29 DAJetr 7 s SRR RRE A A9 3k ()

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on both the Black-Scholes
pricing model and the binomial lattice model. The contractual
life and expectations of early exercise of the share option

(c)

were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

31 January
2007
2007514318

Fair value at measurement date RErERENAAE HK$0.783 7T
Share price BB NATER
Exercise price PE HK$0.6077C
Expected volatility (expressed as BEHRE(AZE

weighted average volatility EA R EARE

used in the models) FRERT) 47.9%
Option life (expressed as RREFE (AZZ

weighted average life used B RANE

in the models) THEHRT) 3 years F
Expected dividends BHRE 4.4%
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERBFIE(UNE

Exchange Fund Notes) EEEEHE) 4.0%
Valuation model used FRMMEERS Black-Scholes

{Bh5 &R

ABREN A REREBRR

VAR T 28 i i 4 B P AR EUAR 75 69 &
REDZ2RARETRRENAAE
FHE o TR T RIREN A R AL
TREAN 7 — R EBER R
“IAARERAE - RRENA
HEHRIERFITRIIIEREIE
BAFAER -

BRBERI A A B R R

Grant date
il AH
15 May 10 October 13 February
2007 2007 2008

200754158 2007€10A 108 2008€2 A 138

HK$0.47 T HK$0.64 7% 7T HKS0.54 87T
HK$1.84787C  HK$2.93%7L  HK$161%T
HK$1.84787C  HK$2.99%7L  HK$1.70%TT
48.9% 51.05% 56.17%

3.25 years 10 years & 10 years
34% 1.21% -

4.2% 4.28% 2.69%
Black-Scholes Binomial Binomial
Bh7=—&RE = ~ER

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There was
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 30 BEA - EME B
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EEHD2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEEGA RSB 2 AT R
of each component of the Group's consolidated equity REHEANFAERRNGREEREH)
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in F o ARRIRFN R FERO S S
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual oz EBFIBERINAT

components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

The Company /N

Share Share Merger Capital  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
Re  RGEE  AftfE  EREE  REEA @zt
Note RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2008 200851518 10,296 579,466 (752) 41,331 (61,919 568,422
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ENAEE - - - - 27,504 27,504
Equity-settled share-based payments WD BEEERAH 29(b) - - - 15,717 - 15,717
Share options cancelled BRIk E 29(b) - = = (6,926) 6,926 =
At 31 December 2008 2008124318 10,296 579,466 (752) 50,122 (27,469) 611,663
At 1 January 2009 R2009E151H 10,296 579,466 (752) 50,122 (27,469) 611,663
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ENAEE - - - - 2862 208621
Share options cancelled BRI E 29(b) - - - (17,667) 17,667 =
At 31 December 2009 2009128318 10,296 579,466 (752) 32,455 218,819 840,284
(b) Dividends (b) KE
No dividend has been declared or approved by the Group ARAEEZE20094 KX 20084F 12 A
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. 31 BIEFERES R B EFERIAR
5 .
A special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share has been MR2010F2 A58 - RARIEEIK
declared on 5 February 2010. The special dividend has not FRFEEO0.158 T2 TRMAT S, ©
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. REEBRBERXRB - FRIRE AR E

RRRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BSEH#S) » LA RETSHT)

30 EA ~ FEMEAE (5])

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

(c)  Share capital (e) MR
(i) Authorised and issued share capital: (i) SEERBBEITRALT:
2009 2008
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
REAHE kx| RiEE £
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT
Authorised: Py
Ordinary shares of SRMEE.01ET
HK$0.01 each AL 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BREIRAR
Ordinary shares of SRMEE.01ET
HK$0.01 each AL 1,040,250,000 10,403 1,040,250,000 10,403
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
RMB equivalent AREZH 10,296 10,296
(i)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at (i) MEEBERXRAXREREEK

the balance sheet date

1T SR A HO 5R R

2009 2008
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1TEHR 1T1EE B #A
22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 HK$0.60 19,000,000 19,000,000
2007 F8 A22H=E201292A21H 0.60 77T
15 November 2007 to 14 May 2016 HK$1.84 27,951,000 33,139,000
2007411 H15HZ 20165 H 14 H 1.84%87T
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 1,000,000 1,000,000
20084 A10H=E20174F10H9H 2.997%7T
10 October 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 - 20,000,000
2008410 H10HZE 201710 H9H 2.99787T
13 August 2008 to 13 August 2018 HK$1.70 8,000,000 8,000,000
20088 H13HZE2018%8 H13H 1.70%87T
55,951,000 81,139,000

SO RBAER THA AR
ARE—RADE LA
BERZERBENE T
BN P RKME 29 ©

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company. Further details of
these options are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D) 30 B -~ R (8)
(¢)  Share capital (Cont’d) (c) MR (4)
(i)~ On 3 October 2007, 81,000,000 Warrants were (i)  72007F10A3H * AAF]
issued to the initial purchasers of the Senior Note. #£1781,000,000 15 ;R R #E 75
At the balance sheet date, there were 81,000,000 TEREEZENNFEE T °
outstanding Warrants. Each of the Warrant holders REEBEBEXRA WE
is entitled to subscribe in cash at an exercise price, 81,000,000 13 & 77 {# 32 %
subject to certain conditions of reset and adjustment, BE - BURAREZERS
of HK$3.36 each for one ordinary share of HK$0.01 A A 2007410 A3 H i
each of the Company at any time from 3 October Z£2012F 10828 1k F M
2007 to 2 October 2012. On 20 September 2008, K ZOEE(XETE
the exercise price of the Warrants has been reset to ERFABMEGHHRR) FIR
HK$1.68, being 50% of the initial exercise price of 3.36870  LIRERE—K
HK$3.36. The Warrants when exercised in full would, HREME0.01 B ITHA R A]
with the present capital structure of the Company, T 3B A% o 720084 9 A 20
result in the issue of 81,000,000 additional ordinary H RREINTEEDE
shares of HK$0.01 each and aggregate subscription E&1.68% 7T + BNYIMATTE
monies of HK$136,080,000 (2008: HK$136,080,000) fE3.36BTAI50% ° TEAR
before the related expenses. ARIRBERERET &R

AR B R BT R A5 B 3K
/BFEEYNEE1T 81,000,000 A&
AR TE{E 0.01 7 Ty @A
K R B SR I8 42 5 A 0 BR AR B8
# F B /4 136,080,000/ 7T
(20084 : 136,080,000;8

TT) °
(iv)  On 11 January 2010, the Company has issued (iv) 7201018118 » XAF]
80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an AR T E SRR T @A 0.95 7%
issue price of HK$0.95 per ordinary share to settle JLE1780,000,000 f% & AX
an upfront fee of HK$76,000,000 (equivalent to H0.01 BT EBE - LA
RMB66,886,000) for the US$26,000,000 credit note 54 5 [ [ HR 15 26,000,000
obtained during the year (note 24). ELEEEERmEENTH

# f76,000,0005% 7T (A Z R
AR#66,886,0007T) (Bfiz:

24) °
(v On 11 January 2010, the Company has issued (v}  R2010F1A11B: XA
25,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an RIAZITESRAE0.0178
issue price of HK$0.95 per ordinary share to another L2 E@AR0.95 BT S —
independent third party for settlement of an advance ¥/ 5 =75 %17 25,000,000
received. RFIREEO0.01 B LA T B

B DA B IR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (S &H#55) » A RETIT)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D) 30 BEA - ffE R (5)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (d) RFEHOEERED

(i) Merger reserve ()  EUEE
The merger reserve represents the difference between & DR T 18 Fr W RS B BT BB
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired RARMAEERRR AR
over the nominal value of the shares used by the SHARMEAEBEZBENZE
Company exchange thereafter. o

(i) Statutory reserve fund (i) EEFEED
According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC BIEFRBERQRE  NEBEH
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% FEKEBARAEYBRE
of its profit after taxation, as determined under PRC FlE - # H R s 8
Accounting Regulations, to statutory reserve fund until 10% BEBEEEERES B
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered ERREBEEBEDFMER
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made H)50% ° BEP R IE = It TE
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders. BEHBER D IR E TR ERA

fEH o

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make EEMBES T AREEBRE
good previous years' losses, if any, and may be FENBE(WE): &6
converted into share capital by the issue of new ZIRRIB AR E MR R
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing TR S 38 TN % 5 AR SR 4%
shareholdings or by increasing the par value of the EROHEESEEFESE
shares currently held by them, provided that the BMARAK  HRZETE
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the HERKTBLREMERD
registered capital. 25% °

(i) Share premium i) R EE
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the RIEBASBEEARE A2
funds in the share premium account of the Company AR EERT O E & A #
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company DIRTFARABRR - HEREE
provided that immediately following the date on EHIKERE Z BEEARD
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the AL STE B B ¥ BIEF
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as BB H B HER -

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(iv)  Capital reserve (iv) EBEXFE

RN R RN s dar
B RAT (R A A B IR S (&t
BEMARE  DREME
2(p)(iii) FF BLACAN A E AR D
RERB N RMERAN S5
KR °

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 2(p)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

30 EA ~ MRS (5])

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserve (Cont’d)

(v)  Distributability of retained profits

For dividend purposes, the amount which the
Company and its subsidiaries can legally distribute
by way of a dividend is by reference to the profits as
reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP. These
profits differ from those reflected in these financial
statements, which are prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

Upon listing of the Company's shares on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, dividends will
be distributed out of the Group's net distributable
earnings, which represent the lower of the net profit as
determined in accordance with PRC GAAP and HKFRS,
less allocation to the statutory reserve fund.

As at 31 December 2009, the retained profits
available for distribution was RMB287,625,000 (2008:
RMB272,287,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

(d)

(e)

RERNEER B (&)

v) AR IRRE a7

SRR E - ANREREM
BRERAERESIRES
W D2REERTH
RRE R ERIR BN T BDE
TE B 75 3R 3% P IR R B9 s )
BERE ° 7% % M S AR B 7 5
R RE - B AR
R M DIRIEF B U
WELERIPTARE

ARRNBRDETBH AR
ZRAERRELEHE KA
A 7R 5= 1 1 ] 4 25 I 22 )
FREDK  FIRARETEA
REEARBFBYBRE
22 Rl AT 26 5E B i )3 AR Y8R
BEEROEZEEFESH
B -

M 2009F 12 A31 8 » Al
DIERHRBEFNNAARE
287,625,000 7T (2008 ©F :
AR 272,287,000 7T) °

BEREE

AEBEREANEERBBEERE
REBOFELEED  KimEE
£ R i 7K - AR 40 R ) E o % AR TS RE
BARESAERANRE - #&
ARSER Bl 3 [0 4R % A SR A AR o

AER BB N E B B AR
TR RERE - AERSRE @R
TB5L T A RE BB R B = i B K T 22
RIF B AR 5 2R A0 47 B S AR [
Z EERG T 1 - 3FF FEAREIR IR
BEHEARBEHFE
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(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

30 EA ~ MRS (8])

(e)

Capital management (Cont’d)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-equity ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables, and accruals), less pledged deposits and,
cash and cash equivalents.

During 2009, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in
line with market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the balance sheet date is as
follows:

Note
fizE
Current liabilities: RBEE:
Trade and other payables, FERERTR - H BT R
and accruals BIREA 25
Bank loans PITER 24
Non-current liabilities: FrRBEE:
Borrowings f& 23
Total debt BEE
Less: pledged deposits B BRER 22

B RENREFED

Less: cash at bank and

in hand

Net debt FEE

Total equity R

Net debt-to-equity FEEHERLE
capital ratio

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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(e) EXREE(E)
MEMRAIZE—  AEELFAEE
HES R AEEERAE ARG
o BUHAEEGFEERTERE
BE(ABEARERREEUR
ENERR EtEMRRERE
R)REERERERReRASS
By -
R 20094F A+ 7N & E B 5 B B
2008 FRIEAE - HFEEHE
WL RFEMISTER - BT HRFX
ARZLLE  AEESGHEDN
TRERKRS ST  BITHRG
REEATRE EEHMNELH
B HEEENRDAME -
REEABRA  FEEHERL
RN ¢
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR%ETT ARETR
478,033 402,576 142,054 38,110
375,800 510,124 - -
853,833 912,700 142,054 38,110
1,393,834 699,725 293,157 519,725
2,247,667 1,612,425 435,211 557,835
(73,569) (59,846) - (31,849)
(216,950) (44,102) (60,115) (28,161)
1,957,148 1,508,477 375,096 497,825
1,720,837 1,659,803 843,087 611,663
114% 91% 44% 81%

AR R E AR A R AZ I
MERNEARERS) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #3i Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

S 5 Dl B A B e o AU

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and

concentration risks arises in the normal course of the Group's

business. These risks are limited by the Group's financial

management policies and practices described below:

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group's credit exposure is represented
by the aggregate balance of cash at bank, trade and other
receivables. Except for those disclosed in note 31(e), the
Group has no concentrations on credit risk. Cash transactions
are limited to high-credit-quality institutions.

The Group has a defined credit policy. The Group reviews the
ageing of loans and advances on a regular basis and closely
monitor the recoverability of the balances. The Group has also
arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of properties
and provided guarantees to secure repayment obligations of
such purchasers. Details of these guarantees are set out in
note 34.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management based on the Group’s internal
guidelines on liquidity requirement, including raising loans to
cover the expected cash demand, and obtaining credit lines,
subject to approval by the Board. The Group's objective is to
strike a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of banking facility and other borrowings. The
Group financed its operations and investment activities with
internally generated cash flows, balanced with proceeds from
the line of credit obtain from banks. There has been no default
on repayment of interest and/or bank borrowings as at year
end or at any time during the year.

ELR

MBI ~ T - HMNE R &R

EARE-—REBREFHE - ZFR
B AR 48 DA TS BT 2t S % 18 ) B 75 3 R SR
RERERE -

(a)

(b)

fERER

REEpAZNERRR TR
R e WR RN A 8 AR 5K
B AEER A RE o RITRES2(e) IR EE
PASI » 7 S (B30 4 E Ath S o 45 R R
- ReX5RRNERERDN
B -

REBERBWOEREE - K&
B E Bign E R R B RERE, X
EREEZSHEHBED KD - K
SETRAETYEREREHRTR
EREEBERAREZSERET
BEEE - RS ERNFES
FHAPIRESS ©

REN LR

REEERIMERRREAEES
MRBESRENAES - BT
BEEAGNELER  BEE%
ERNENTRRNRSFRRES
MERE  HARBARAESRSH
e o REEN B RRBNNEBE
RRITEEREMEEERE ST
BURET T RMHE - AEH
NAMEENRSRERELEE
BREEERIEES  FRAZ
TRERBNMISRIEARLERTT
BRHNBEBRMET - NFEHKF
A £ fa B R 3 £ AE fa] (R A B R,
HIRITERWELIER
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# i R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BSEH#S) » LA RETSHT)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D) 31 BAR B B N o ()
(b)  Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (b) REMERRE (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRBARAEBMRARG ZIELTE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s and ERMEBEMTEEBRER) REE
the company's non-derivatlve financial liabilities (excluding BEXRAZHTALOIEA R
receipts in advance), which are based on contractual BAAORTRRESRE(REFER
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments BRFERFE 2 F B - B
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on FEFIE - AlEREEBBERAZ
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date RRAE) ARAKNER RARN AT
the group and the company can be required to pay: ZREEZHFEAME -
2009 2008
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHRTRRSR BORARRSR
More More More More
than 1 than 2 Balance than 1 than 2 Balance
Within 1 yearbut years but More sheet  Within1  yearbut  years but More sheet
yearoron lessthan lessthan  than5 carrying yearoron lessthan  less than than 5 carrying
demand  2years  5years years Total amount  demand  2years  5years years Total  amount
—ER -FHHE MENLE &R —FUER RENLE

IEEX ORWE OWEE EEME BB REE ARRX JNWE JREF AENE BB BEE
RMB000 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO0D RMB000 RMBOO0 RMB000 RMBOOO RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBODD RMB000
ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARBTR ARBTL ARETE ARMTE ARMTR ARETR

Bank and other borrowings  $F{TREMEE 495750 830,064 489537 414,677 2230028 1769634 621640 114669 845861 - 1582170 1,209,849
Trade and other payable,  FERTER -
and accruals EA R
REREM 287,467 - - - 281467 478,033 291980 - - - 291980 402,576
Renteland other degosts BEREMfRA 3139 42 1819 628 MM M8 238 57 1089 7085 11129 11,19
Total At 786,356 830526 491416 420940 2529238 2259410 916008 115236 846,950 7085 1,885,279 1623554
The above table excluded all non-cash settled contractual ERTBEMEHRESEEZED
liabilities. =N
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D) 31 B R B A B e A Ao (4)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZE@R
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEBEMFERREZRE R E
bearing assets and liabilities. It is the Group's intention to BERAE AEBFEEERE
keep its borrowings at floating interest rate with an aim to FEMEE  BUARBESHTISK
reflect market costs of funding. It is this reason that cost X RARAANEEMEERRE
of specific borrowings financing the Group’s development & ¢ M E B B A K IE R 5
projects would be capitalised at a rate reflecting market BRZFIETIANERE - NEBR
conditions. The Group's effect on changes in interest rate is I ER 2 F) 3 AN SR @] A Sk ES 1B A
considered immaterial to the Group's profit or loss. FERRHR o
(i) Interest rate profile ()  FIFEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAMKAERBRARA TR
the Group’s and the Company's assets and liabilities at BEABRAMEERAR
the balance sheet date. KR RAEE -
The Group The Company
AEM .|
2009 2008 2009 2008
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
BT ik vk B
% RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ANRETT
Pledged deposits e 0-03 73569 0069 59846 - - - 38
Saving depostts e 0-03 212984 0069 41218 0-02 G0M9  0-08 27406
Loans and advances LEYED 531-594 216893 531747 89641 531 26360  531-747 21772
Fixed rate borrowings: EERE:
Senior Note Br2E 1780 182,657 1907 519,725 1780 182,657 1907 519725
Bankand other borrowings  RAIREMER 10.00-11.00 510,500 - - - - - -
Trade and other payables, MBS - ARz
and accruals RBRER 600 30,000 - = - - - -
I ms o 819725 ] 182857 . 51973
Variable rate borrowings: ~ FEEE
Bankand other borrowings  FIREME _486-907 1076477 640907 65014 - _____- . - -
Total interest-bearing HEEE
borrowings bt 1,799,634 1,169,849 182,657 519,725
Fixed rate borrowings TEEE
as 4 percentage of total hitERE
interestbearing borrowings BRI 40.2% 44.43% 100% 100%
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A & 139
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(B=EHTESN  UARETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D)

31

S 785 J i A B S o S (D)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% (2008: 2%) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB5,892,000 (2008: decrease/
increase by RMB5,145,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 1% (2008: 2%) increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
representative pattern of possible change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2008.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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(c)

=@ ()
(i) HEESH

MW 2009%12 A318 -
ERMBEHEMESHERFTE
ZBERT wHEX2MA
£ T #1% (20084 :
2%) - AIZAN & E B BR &
s ) R AR B i F g m 1
m# AR #5,892,0007T
(20084 : A HEIMAR
# 5,145,000 7T) °

A UK E AT TR R A R
SBHENEERBRARE
mEE @ Wat AR BFE
MOTE MIESTE S B T AR
AZEF KRR o EFAKT
1% (20084 : 2% )REKE
HEHER KRR RER R
FE T 2008 R DT
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5 BA#55) » AN RETIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D)

31

S 5 D o A B e o SO (489)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

All the Group's revenue-generating activities were transacted
in Renminbi. Exposure to foreign currency risks is mainly
attributable to bank deposits, Senior Note and credit note that
are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. Foreign
currency risk is measured by employing sensitivity analysis,
taking into account current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2009, bank deposits (including pledged
deposits) denominated in USD amounted to RMB55,173,000
(2008: RMB32,429,000).

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that had the United
States Dollars exchange rate (versus Renminbi) increased/
decreased by 5% (2008: 5%), with all other variables
remaining constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB11,899,000 (2008: RMB29,222,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at the date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. Results of
the analysis as presented above represent an aggregation
of the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective foreign currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

(d)

SNERR

REBAEEERANEBITIAA
REETR S - FREHHINERR
IBRARTER BERBREER
SHBEUAARBUIINIEHEFE - 5
KRR TRBERESTETE X
R E AT R IAEA E R o

M 2009412 A31 8 » UEJTaHAE
MERTER (BRERREFER) £8EA
AR# 55,173,000 7T (20084 : A
R#32,429,0007T) °

M2009%F12 A31H £ AE H
EERFTTEZBERLT - WEE
TRARBEZRSR LA THA
5% (20084 : 5%) & BIARE B R
NE B RS A G D BIR
1 NE A R # 11,899,000 7T
(20084 : AR¥529,222,0007T) °

B 5 17 T B2 3 I s
BERAEREREREMER -
Wi A% EEERZ A 5T
£ RIENTE S BT AFAZ R EN

BB - A E A R Rk
REFTE -

BRI EREHNT —EF
EEE BB A A1 HRENE [ X 7]
BEB BT L o A EPRFIRM ST
BRARHAKEET S EEBRS
BIMNEFHIIREERBERAMNE
EME R/ ANREAHZ5] 2 BRI
Tt & A Ko fE a2 & - 2008
FHDITRE —EAEHET
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D)

31

S 5 Dl o A B e o SO (469)

(e)

(f)

Concentration risk

The operation of the Group significantly relied on a single third
party which was the largest supplier of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Should the operation of the party be in doubt, the operation
of the Group may be significantly affected. The Group has
requested that party to arrange a guarantee for the sale
proceeds not yet repaid by the party upon the sales of
properties to it in prior years. The Group also assesses the
financial position of the party closely in order to mitigate the
concentration risks exposed.

Fair values

(1) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instruments categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation technigues in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE& 1= AR A
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(e)

(f)
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Bl e RAEATE - AEEHE
ERZHBEFERNEHEWER
W AR E B B E PSR HEHEAR o
REE T E R EZ T P BRI
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONT’D) 31 BARSE F i B M A e E ()
(f)  Fair values (Cont'd) (f) 2DREGE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Cont’d) (i) UAIpEBRENZHETA
()
Level 3: (lowest level): fair values measured using FIR(HEER) : FAME
valuation techniques in which any significant inputs is 25 Z 8 A IEE A A B R
not based on observable market data TMZEEMNHERME A
RnfE
The Group The Company
%8 |
Level1  Level2  Level3 Total Level1  Level2  Level3 Total

GEr gE2 HE3 & gEn MEl2 BRls &
RMBOOD RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBO0O  RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBO0O  RMBI00D
ARETL ARETTL ARBTT ARETL ARBTL ARETT ARETL ARMTR

Assets &E
Trading securities: EFHEE:
- Listed Sl 502 - - 502 - - - -
- unlsted o A} - 40 -4 - - - -
50 4017 - 4519 - . . .
Liabilities Bf
Derivative financial fiEemIA:
instruments:
- Warrants ~ iR - - 30,252 30,252 - - 30202 30,252
During the year, there were no significant transfers FRRAEBERAN LK
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. A2 ZFEABE o
The movement during the year in the balance of Level FRN- RBNSZER DR
3 fair value measurements is set out in note 23(b). B2 5 2 8 & N K
23(b) °

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than (i) AR EXI SR T
fair value ARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the AEERARBTHMTEZ
Company's financial instruments carried at cost or 8% T {81 DA B 7S SX 8 8K X 2R 51
amortised cost are not materially different from their fk, BAH2009%F }2 2008412
fair values as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. RA31BZARBELEEARE

.
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32 COMMITMENTS

32 ¥

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Authorised but not contracted for EEBEERTA
Contracted but not provided for BEETHVBREE

Commitments for operating leases

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of two to fifteen years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

During the year, RMB8,220,000 (2008: RMB10,082,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses in respect of
sub-leased properties.

As at the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of leased and sub-leased properties are payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA
After 5 years hER

144 Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
Annual Report 2009 —Z & H F 53R

(a)

(b)

K12 B31 B REF B RERALE
BREREENT :
The Group
REE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARBT T
1,944,644 2,263,292
550,229 487,117
2,494,873 2,750,409
LT ERE

AEESK2HE T ZHEYENA
A - ZFHOKN —KRSHRE
E+HF RZBRAEREME
i & s P B IR R BT3RS © P
BHES T EHAEE -

FR EEZACERSERYE
W& HA AR 8,220,000
(20084 : AR¥10,082,0007T) °

REEBERXRA - RETAT AR
ReEHE HEREEMEERR
e RERENRAARENT

The Group
rEE

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBF T
8,887 9,792
29,306 28,063
23,157 25,059
61,350 62,914
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SIGNIFICANT LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

33

HEME L

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of investment
properties held under operating leases are described in note 16(c).

Apart from these leases, the Group also sub-leases out a number
of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. All of
these leases have no contingent element.

During the year, RMB16,841,000 (2008: RMB15,939,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as rental income in respect of sub-leased
properties.

As at 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of sub-leased
properties are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA
After 5 years hFEE

REKEMHEMBFHNRENVESIERNE
ZRELHFIFNIEE 16(c) °

B2EEEN  AEETRELEHEE
HEAETYWE - GaLBE-—RRE—=
THF - RZARAEBER MER
BRI ENGE - AAEELHEE

RAEER EIEEZACDHERAEEREY
¥MHASWABARKE16,841,0007T
(20084 : AR¥15,939,0007T) °

72009412 431 8 - RBET AR A
EHE BEMEERARERNHRER
EFRFBEENT

The Group
rEE

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
10,942 9,883
13,664 9,850
7,596 5,897
32,202 25,630
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34 BRARAE

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group
REE
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage MERTTE H A ER ¢
facilities granted to purchasers REFAEEYEER
of the Group's properties (note (a)) iZBEEE (i) 370,000 370,000
Contingent liability in respect of a BRAFFAAR
litigation (note (b)) A E & (FIEE (b)) - 21,020

146

Notes:

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the Group's properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed
by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal title of the related properties. The Group's
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends after the purchaser obtained the individual
property ownership certificate or up to a maximum of two years after
the full repayment of mortgage loan by the purchaser of the Group’s
properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, a claim has been made to
a subsidiary of the Group in respect of a property construction cost
of RMB21,020,000. The Intermediate People’s Court of Zhangjiakou,
Hebei Province, the PRC has ruled in favour of the plaintiff on 25
November 2008.

On 7 January 2009, the subsidiary has filed an appeal with the High
People’s Court of Hebei Province to deny the liability. The High
People’s Court of Hebei Province has made the final ruling in favour of
the Group on 8 December 2009. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in respect of this claim.

Hong Long Holdings Limited J&[& 1SR A T
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FiaE

(b)

REBRE TRITRENRIEHEHR
HER ZERBRESRASEES
THEBRMFLARIBER - RIEBHE
REYERK - MRS ERERIZIBRE
RAEBERARRITEEERERNE
HEREFERMERER  MAKE
ERERREEMNENEEMBIE -
AEERERBRBZIBERRLAH
Rt YR ERRFEREEFR IR
AEENEERINEBIRBENK R
ZMERIER

HE2008F12A31MALLFE " A&
E—HNEARRYEREREAARE
21,020,000 TTH IR H R (E - REVTILE
KRR AR RARERTR20084F 11 A 25
B A RERBF ©

R 20094F1 A7 H » ZKIERAE @A
EtESRAREREL EROREME
£ oAb A B RARIER K 20094 12
A8 R{EHAREEE R REHIR o iR
it REBMBBEEHREEMS -
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35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AN ERR S
In addition to those material related party transactions disclosed BRIV ERREME T EENZESEAN
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the following BEBEALTRSH  AEBEEBEALTR
significant transactions and balances with related parties during the FRNEARG REHWOT ¢
year:
Transactions and balances with the Group’s affiliated HEAEENHEATAREEEENRS
companies and their directors )5&=3-73
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT AR®EFT

Prepayments (note (i)) TEfT R (BEE () 1,538 26,707
Trade payables (note (ii)) FEFTBR SR (FI3E (i) - 8,724
Notes: B E -

0] Prepayments represented prepayments of construction materials paid (i) TBARRRZT FRAEATBEMRTE
to a related party for use of the Group’s development projects. The R AEAKERBEEZA - kF
terms of such transactions were carried out on normal commercial R DIE—REEGIRRAEBES
terms and in the ordinary course of the Group's businesses. KB ENHETT o

(ii) Trade payables represented interest-free and unsecured amount due (i) EREFRREFERE —BLHBRED
to a then minority shareholder for short-term purposes. This amount R REEREBRIE c ZRIEAR=
was repayable on demand and made on the same terms with other ERERARMEE  WRREHMBE
independent third parties. = BRI ET L ©
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36

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

36

B E AR RS

37

On 24 January 2010, the Group has entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 100% of
the equity interest in Shenzhen Huaxingguang Industrial Company
Limited (“Huaxingguang”). Huaxingguang was engaged in the
development of residential and commercial properties at Pinghu
Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen, the PRC. The aggregate
consideration under the equity transfer agreement is approximately
RMB173,758,000 (inclusive of assumption of former equity holders
loan of RMB148,758,000) and property consideration. The property
consideration represented the estimated total cost of completion
of 25,850 square metre of gross floor area of commercial
properties and 6,000 square metre of gross floor area of carparks
to be delivered to the vender upon completion of construction.
Huaxingguang will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
after the completion of the equity transfer.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

37

R2010F1 248 AEBE B
FE= R EF RS E D ABE R T
EEEBEEBRAFZIRE(ER
BE 1) o ZEHER P BRI E M E TS
HEREREHEDE - REREZESE
e BREXH A AR 173,758,000
T(EEAERFEAEAERREARK
148,758,000 7T ) R MK (B - WHENE
EBREREILARMNTFTEANEER
ER25850 F A KB RAYMERZEERE
/6,000 F 5 K285 KT T2 A5
KN EEENERERETKE  BAA
AEBEZEAMB AR -

b~

38

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation
of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform the current
year's presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these
developments are disclosed in note 3.

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

38

R ERB AT AERIE 157 (2007 F4£
185]) [MIsHRER 2 25| REBUBIRE
HRIFSR[EENI] BEFLBEHT
KEABRUFTEAFEZZHR - UK
2009 F HEREE 2 HERELREHE -
ZEEHBRR2E—THBRWEIR

= o

BEO R M b A B ]

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be Grand Prosperity Limited, which
is incorporated in BVI. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JER& 1= AR A &
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

39

Ak A O B

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(a)

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 2(j), the Group's completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
in case for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred in selling
the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and
this may result in provision for completed properties held
for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision for
properties in the periods in which such estimate is changed
will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the balance sheet date. Any increase
or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in
future years.

5 R B T 5 BT R - L UAB
EERIEGEARERERN  BIFE
ZEBRATAEREEHANREKSE
o EFFAEERRMEZHRAT

(a)

HEHENERIMERBHESR
AR B RE DR R

ANPMRE 2()) FTARTE - AREEFHEH
EMNERTYE - HHEERKAE
RBERBYETI ARKNERTZE
FEMNBEE AR « RIEAEEK
ROERE EmENNEE - RE
BERRENTSRR  HEE
B HHERERERERPYE
BIR TR R M E RS METES
FIRR A

fis 3% T PR AN T8 AN 2k 36 5 (B ES
BERMRLD  IREREEFESS
WA MRS RFEHENER
TH  RARBEOERFHED
ERDEIRE R R EBAT
VA B R A5t = fisd 78 B B2 R SR ik =t
BRATRE - RZEE HBERS R
B RRE E R A S AR
# .

BEAN - AR IR TR B FE T 5 R B K
ERMENFENEE - KA RS
MERASRESNHENEEE
BERBMGEHAE o EENE
RT3 AN SR D 1 7 2R 2 6k A S
BEKTE -
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39 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

39  Erakfhat SOA B (A7)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The Group prepaid land and construction costs for certain
projects located on the lands which the Group has not
obtained land use rights. The Group is in the process of
obtaining these land use rights. Should the land use rights
cannot be obtained subsequently, certain prepaid costs may
not be recoverable. The Group provides for impairment losses
for the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation. The
Group’s estimates may be inaccurate and any change in the
estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of loans and
advances and provides for impairment losses if the balances
are not fully recoverable. The assessments involve estimation
on the recoverability of these balances. The Group's
estimates may be inaccurate and any change in estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Land Appreciation Tax

As explained on note 8(a), Land Appreciation Tax is levied on
properties developed by the Group for sale, at progressive
rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing cost and all property development expenditures.
Given that the uncertainties of the calculation basis of Land
Appreciation Tax adopted by local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than estimated at the
balance sheet date. Any increase or decrease in estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JER& 1= AR A &
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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39 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

39 &bk Lo B ()

(e)

(f)

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-established
valuation techniques using current market parameters are
theoretical values applicable at a given reporting date, and
hence can only be used as an indicator of value realisable
in a future sale. These techniques involve uncertainties
and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and
judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discounted rates, estimates of future
cash flows, future expected loss and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and
the resulting fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot
necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and, in many cases, could not be realised in an
immediate sale of the instruments.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 16, investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
a method of valuation which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, appropriate discount rates
and expected future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions.

(e)

(f)

TEERMTIA

RBEBEZNGEDERBER
MS2BEAENRIAERBERANE
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 40 OHEAMGERE ZE 2009412 H
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE 31 EI _[J:EF‘)E I‘é_j *%%{ Hg 1%%‘]‘ N
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 B e R N 72 R ) AT RE R 22
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA HEULEMBHREATIEABRLE 55
has issued the following amendments, new standards and ARASEAMBIEEE « ERKRRE
Interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 2o 2555« ERIRZEEREZE2009
December 2009 and which have not been adopted in these financial F12A31HIEFEHARER - BARRIL
statements. LSRR RN -

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
A5 B 8is 2 & BRI E s R A A

HKFRS 3 (revised), Business combinations 1 July 2009

BT RE LR E 35 (BUBET) - EFAb 200947 A1 H

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial 1 July 2009
statements

BRLERE 27 5% (BFTA) - 46 KB M BRE 200947 A1 H

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition 1 July 2009
and measurement — Eligible hedged items

BB ENFEIFMER - eRIE 200947 A1 H

RN E-REREIRR

HKI(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009
% (BRUBRERERES) -RBE 7R  REAADRERESEE 2009F7A1H
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010
2009 FEBHI IR &R 2 B 200947 A 1H52010F1R1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what NEEEAET G EEET - FER R
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new RERRYVERBENBERYE &5
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. SHENERERALE ST EAY B RS
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have ZERT KA e AR B E BRI
a significant impact on the Company’s results of operations and MREKEARTE -

financial position.
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